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BOARDS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their Twenty Eighth Annual Report together
with the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Financial Highlights

Particulars 2021-22 2020-2021
(Rs. in Lakhs) | (Rs. in Lakhs)
Net Sales and other income 1460.44 5131.22
Profit /(Loss) before Interest, Depreciation and _6249.87 -2400.01
Tax
Interest 1,084.45 2,575.74
Depreciation 104.48 496.87
Profit /(Loss) before Tax and prior period items -7,438.80 -5,472.62
Prior period items - -
Profit /(Loss) before Tax -7,438.80 -5,472.62
Tax expenses:
Current tax (MAT) - -
Deferred tax - -
MAT credit entitlement - -
Tax provision for earlier years - -
Net Profit /(Loss) after Tax -7,438.80 -5,472.62
Seaallarmce of Profit /(Loss) carried forward to next 7.438.80 5.472.62
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Company Performance

The net revenue of the Company was Rs. 1,460.44 lakhs as against Rs. 5131.22 lakhs
in the previous year. The Loss before tax is Rs. 7,438.80 lakhs as against loss for Rs.
5472.62 lakhs in the previous year. The Loss for the year was Rs. 7,438.80 lakhs as
against loss for Rs. 5,472.62 lakhs in previous year.

Brief Description of the Company’s working during the Year/State of Company’s
Affairs

The Company is inter-alia engaged in the business of providing customer-centric
financial services, mainly in the form of micro-credit, to the under-served and un-served
women population and MSMEs of the country. The credit extended is utilized majorly in
agriculture and allied activities as well as in small businesses. Through the Company’s
products and services, the Company aims at empowering the economically active poor
households and MSMEs to grow their businesses and thus improve their overall quality
of lives.

Payment of Dividend

Your Board of Directors has expressed their inability to recommend dividend to the
Shareholders due to loss for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.

Reserves

Due to the loss during the financial year ended 31% March, 2022 no amount is proposed
to carry to any reserves.

Material changes and commitments

There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position
of the Company which have occurred between the end of the Financial Year to which the
Financial Statements relate and the date of this Report.

Issue of Non-Convertible Debenture

During the year under review, the Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 24,
2021 approved raising of funds not exceeding Rs. 100 crore by way of issuance of Non
— Convertible Debenture and/or Sub-ordinated Debentures and accordingly shareholders
approved the same at Annual General Meeting on September 30, 2021 by passing
special resolution.
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Particulars of Share Capital Structure

Right Issue:

The Board at its meeting held on:

a. September 29, 2021 allotted 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity
shares of face value of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- each
aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifty Crore only); and

b. February 8, 2022 allotted 55,00,000 (Fifty Five Lakh) equity shares of face
value of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs.
11,00,00,000/- (Rupees Elven Crore only)

on rights basis to Fino Paytech Limited, its holding company.

Alteration of Memorandum of Association:

The Company by passing special resolution at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held
on September 28, 2021 altered the provisions of its Memorandum of Association by
altering the capital clause for increase in Authorised Capital from existing
Rs.16,00,00,000 (Rupees Sixteen Crore only) divided into 1,60,00,000 (One Crore Sixty
Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each to Rs. 53,50,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Three Crore
Fifty Lakh only) divided into 5,35,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty-Five Lakh) Equity Shares of
Rs. 10/- each;

Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review:

i. Mr. Praveer Kumar tendered his resignation from the post of Chief Financial
Officer and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company with effect from closure of
working hours on December 10, 2021;

ii. Mr. Jitendra Garg tendered his resignation from the post of Company Secretary &
Manager - Legal, KMP & Compliance Officer with effect from closure of business
hours on March 07, 2022; and

iii. Mr. Ramakrishna Gupta Vesta tendered his resgination as Nominee Director with
immediate effect from March 03, 2022.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 30, 2021, the
Shareholders of the Company had confirmed the re-appointment of Mr. Sudeep Gupta
as Whole-time Director of the Company for a period of One (1) year with effect from
November 14, 2021 to November 13, 2022 (both days inclusive).



Fino_
Fino Finance

Except as mentioned above there were no further changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under
review.

Retirement by rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with
Companies (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 and Articles of Association of
the Company, Mr. Sudeep Gupta (DIN: 07899859), Whole-time Director of the
Company, who retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and
being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment and the Board recommends his re-
appointment.

Independent Directors

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures under Section 149(7) of the
Act to the Board that they fulfill all the criteria of independence as mentioned in Section
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Board Evaluation

Your Company is highly committed and have dedicated professionals as Directors on its
Board. The Directors follow an efficient mechanism for Annual Evaluation of
performance by the Board, Directors individually, and the Committees of the Board, the
mechanism basically is based upon the principle of enhancement in Company’s efficient
governance and bringing higher levels of transparency, legacy and accountability in

working of the Company.

Broadly, the evaluation framework for assessing the performance of Directors comprises
of the following key areas:

i. Attendance of Board Meetings and Board Committee Meetings.
ii. Quality of contribution at the Board/Committee Meetings deliberations.

iii. Strategic perspectives or inputs regarding future growth of Company and its
performance.

iv. Providing perspectives/advice and feedback going beyond information provided
by the management.

v. Commitment towards Shareholders and other Stakeholders’ interests.
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As per the Companies Act, 2013, the formal annual evaluation needs to be made by the
Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual Directors.

Further, Schedule 1V of Companies Act, 2013 states that the performance evaluation of
Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the
Director being evaluated.

Accordingly, the Board of Directors had carried out annual performance evaluation of its
own performance, the committees and Director individually including Independent
Directors. The performance evaluation of the Non Independent Directors and the Board
as a whole, Chairman of Company, taking into account the views of Executive Director
and Non-Executive Director, was carried out by the Independent Directors.

The Board of Directors had expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.
Details of Board of Directors’ Meetings

During the year under review, Six (6) Board meetings were held and the dates on which
the meetings were held are:

26.04.2021
24.06.2021
27.08.2021
22.09.2021
13.11.2021 and
6 09.02.2022
The details of the Directors and attendance at the meeting of the Board of Directors:

aswN e

Sr.no | Name Category No of Meetings
attended
1. | Mr. Ashok Kini Independent Director 6
2. | Dr. Anjana Grewal* Independent Director 6
3. | Mr. Sudeep Gupta Whole-time Director 6
4, Mr. Ramakrishna Gupta | Nominee Director 6
Vetsa**

*Ceased to be Director of the Company, upon completion of her term as an Independent
Director w.e.f May 18, 2022.

**ceased to be Nominee Director of the Company, due to his resignation w.e.f closing of
working hours of March 3, 2022.
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Further As per para 2.2 of Secretarial Standard-1 issued by Institute of Company
Secretaries of India, the Board has set the minimum number and frequency of
Committee meetings.

Audit Committee

The Board had constituted Audit Committee under Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013. As on March 31, 2022 the Committee comprised of two Independent Directors.

During the year under review, four (4) meetings of Audit Committee were held and the
date on which the meetings were held are:

24.06.2021
27.08.2021
13.11.2021 and
09.02.2022

P wnNPE

Details of members of the Committee and their attendance at the Audit Committee
meetings:

Sr. Name Category No of Meetings
no attended
1. | Mr. Ashok Kini Member 4
2. | Dr. Anjana Grewal* Member 4
3. | Mr. Ramakrishna Gupta Member 2
Vetsa**

*Ceased to be Member of the Audit Committee, upon completion of her term as an
Independent Director w.e.f May 18, 2022.

**ceased to be Member of the Audit Committee, due to his resignation as a Nominee
Director w.e.f closing of working hours of March 3, 2022.

The Board of Directors had accepted all the recommendations given by the Audit
committee during the year under review.

Authorised Member of the Audit Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting
held on September 30, 2022.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Board has constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee under Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013. As on March 31, 2022 the Committee comprised of two
Independent Directors.

The Board of Directors has framed a policy which lays down guidelines in relation to
remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employee of the
Company. This policy inter-alia, prescribes criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of Directors also lays down criteria for selection and
appointment of Board Members. The Nomination and Remuneration policy has been
prepared as per requirements of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act,
2013 read along with the Rules. There were no material changes in the policy during the
F.Y. 2021-22. The Policy is annexed herewith as Annexure A.

During the year under review, two (2) meetings of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee was held on 24.06.2021 and 27.08.2021 and the details of members of the
Committee and their attendance at the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Meeting:

Sr.no | Name Category No of Meetings
attended
1. | Mr. Ashok Kini Member 2
2. | Dr. Anjana Grewal* Member 2
3. | Mr. Ramakrishna Gupta Member 2
Vetsa**

*Ceased to be Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, upon
completion of her term as an Independent Director w.e.f May 18, 2022.

**ceased to be Member of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, due to his
resignation as a Nominee Director w.e.f closing of working hours of March 3, 2022 .

The Board of Directors had accepted all the recommendations given by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee during the year under review.

Authorised Member of the Committee was present at the Annual General Meeting held
on September 22, 2022.
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Risk and Asset Liability Management (ALM) Committee

During the year under review, two (2) meetings of Risk and ALM Committee were held
on 24.06.2021 and 13.11.2021 and the details of members of the Committee and their
attendance are as below:

Sr.no | Name Category No of Meeting attended
1. Mr. Ashok Kini Chairman 2
2. Mr. Anjana Grewal* Member 2
3. Mr. Sudeep Gupta Member 2

*Ceased to be Member of the Committee, upon completion of her term as an
Independent Director w.e.f May 18, 2022.

As on 31 March, 2022 the Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Kini, Chairman of the
Committee, Dr. Anjana Grewal, Member, and Mr. Sudeep Gupta, Member of the
Committee.

IT Strategy Committee

In compliance with Clause 1.1 of Section-A on IT Governance of the Master Direction
No. DNBS. PPD.N0.04/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 8" June, 2017, issued by the Reserve
Bank of India, specifying the IT framework to be adopted for the NBFC sector, the Board
of Directors has re-constituted an IT Strategy Committee on 02" March, 2021
comprising of Mr. Ashok Kini, (Independent Director) Chairman of the Committee, Mr.
Sudeep Gupta, Member and Mr. Roshan Shrirao, Member of the Committee.

The scope of the Committee inter alia, includes review and approval of IT strategy and
policy documents and any other matter related to IT governance.

During the year under review, two (2) meetings of IT Strategy Committee were held on
27.08.2021 and 09.02.2022 and the details of members of the Committee and their
attendance at the IT Strategy Committee meeting are as below:

Sr. Name Category No of Meeting
no attended

1. | Mr. Ashok Kini Chairman 2

2. | Mr. Sudeep Gupta Member 2

3. | Mr. Roshan Shrirao Member 2
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As on 31st March, 2022 the Committee comprises of Mr. Ashok Kini, Chairman of the
Committee, Mr. Sudeep Gupta, Member, and Mr. Roshan Shrirao, Member of the
Committee.

Secretarial Standards

The Directors confirm that the Company is in compliance with applicable secretarial
standards issued by Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

Vigil Mechanism

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism that enables the Directors and
Employees to report genuine concerns. The Vigil Mechanism provides for (a) adequate
safeguards against victimization of persons who use the Vigil Mechanism; and (b) direct
access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company in appropriate or exceptional cases.

Reporting of Frauds by Auditors

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors and the Secretarial Auditor have not
reported any instances of frauds committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees
to the Audit Committee under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, details of

which need to be mentioned in this Report.

Additional disclosures

i) Financial highlights are given in the beginning of the report.
1)) Change in the nature of business, if any: None
iii) The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year in accordance with

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014.

iv) There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators, courts or
Tribunals during the year impacting the going concern status and Company’s
operations in future.

V) The Company has adopted adequate and effective internal financial controls with
reference to the financial statements.
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Vi) There is no requirement to appoint Cost Auditor by the Company.

vii) The provision for the Corporate Social Responsibility as under Section 135(1) of
the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company.

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

Your Company is an equal opportunity employer and is committed to ensuring that the
work environment at all its locations is conducive to fair, safe and harmonious relations
between employees. It strongly believes in upholding the dignity of all its employees,
irrespective of their gender or seniority. Discrimination and harassment of any type are
strictly prohibited.

The Company has in place an Anti Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013.

The Company has complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal
Complaints Committee (ICC) under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 to redress complaints received
regarding sexual harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary,
trainees) are covered under the policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off
during the year 2021-22

¢ No. of complaints received . 0

¢ No. of complaints disposed off.: 0

o Number of cases pending for more than 90 days : 0

¢ Number of workshops/awareness programmes against sexual harassment
carried out — online training awareness is carried out periodically

¢ Nature of action taken by the employer or District Officer — Not Applicable

Directors’ Responsibility Statement
Pursuant to the requirement of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, and based on

the representations received from the operating management, your Directors hereby
confirm that:
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(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent
SO as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2022 and loss of the Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s)
for the time being in force) for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(e) the directors had down internal financial controls to be followed by the company
and that such internal controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the
provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Auditors & Auditors’ Report

The Shareholders in their meeting held on September 30, 2021 had appointed M/s.
Tibrewal Chand & Co. (ICAI Firm Registration No. 311047E), Chartered Accountants, as
Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of M/s. MSKC & Associates LLP (formerly
R.K. Kumar & Co.) (Registration No. 001595S), Chartered Accountants, for a term of 5
years, commencing from the conclusion of the 27" AGM till the conclusion of the 32"
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2026.

The Notes to Accounts are self explanatory and therefore do not call for any further
comments. The Auditors’ Report is unmodified and does not contain any qualification,
reservation or adverse remark.

The Company exempted the presence of Statutory Auditors in the AGM.

Disclosures under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014

As required under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, the disclosures regarding
Conservation of Energy, Research and Development, Technology Absorption are set out
in the Annexure B included in this Report.
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There is no Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo during the financial year ended 31
March, 2022.

Disclosures under the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014

Disclosures as per Rule 5 (1) & (2) of the Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014, is appended as
Annexure C.

Related Party Transactions

All material related party transactions under Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder are set out in Form AOC-2 (As per Section 134 of the
Companies Act, 2013) is annexed herewith as Annexure- D. These transactions are in
ordinary course of business and on arms length basis. The details of the related party
transactions as required under Accounting Standard 18/ Ind AS 24, as the case may be,
are set out in notes to accounts to the financial statements. All Related Party
Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee.

The related party disclosures as per Regulations 53(f) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is attached herewith as Annexure E.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investments

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of the
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Notes to Financial statements.

Internal Auditor

As required under Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 13 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Internal Audit function is carried out by the
Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditors present their report to the Audit Committee. The
scope, functioning, periodicity and methodology for conducting the internal audit have
been formulated in consultation with the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors.

Secretarial Audit Report and qualifications
M/s. DM & Associates, Company Secretaries LLP, the Secretarial Auditor has conducted

Secretarial audit for the financial year 2021-22 as required under Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013.
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The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark. The report is provided in Annexure F which is included in this report.

The Company exempted the presence of Secretarial Auditors in the AGM.
Internal Controls and their adequacy

The Company has an Internal Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and
complexity of its operations. Internal Audit Control System ensures that the regular
internal audits are conducted at both the branches and other functional areas. The
findings are then taken up by audit committee along with management response for
suitable action. The Company has adequate and effective internal audit system,
covering on a continuous basis, the entire gamut of operations and services spanning all
locations, business and functions. The Audit Committee monitors the Internal Audit
System on regular intervals and directs necessary steps to further improve the Internal
Control system.

Return
In accordance with the provision of Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act 2013, the copy

of the annual return in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 is uploaded on website of the
Company www.finofinance.in

RBI Guidelines

As on March 31, 2022, the Company is a Systematically Important- Non deposit
accepting Company (NBFC- NSI- ND) registered with Reserve Bank of India (RBI). The
Company has been granted NBFC — Micro Finance Institution (NBFC-MFI) license.

Details of Holding/Subsidiary/Associate Companies

Sr. Name of the | Whether Year of Status
no. Company incorporated /| Incorporation/
acquired/ acquisition
converted
1. FINO  PayTech | Incorporated 2006 Holding
Limited Company
2 Fino Trusteeship | Incorporated 2009 Associate
Services Ltd Company of
Holding
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Sr. Name of the | Whether Year of Status
no. Company incorporated /| Incorporation/
acquired/ acquisition
converted
Company
3 Fino Payments | Converted 2017 Fellow
Bank Ltd Subsidiary
4 Fino Financial | Incorporated 2014 Fellow
Services Pvt Ltd Subsidiary

Debenture Trustees

The details of the Debenture trustees with full contact details are attached herewith as
Annexure G.
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The Board wishes to place on record its sincere appreciation to the contribution made by
the Employees of the Company during the year under review. Your Directors thank the
customers, clients, vendors and other business associates for their continued support in
the Company’s growth. The Directors also wish to thank the Government Authorities,
Banks, Financial Institutions and the Shareholders for their co-operation and assistance
extended to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Place: Navi Mumbai Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Date: September 22, 2022 Independent Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 00812946) (DIN: 07899859)
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ANNEXURE -A

COMPENSATION PHILOSOPHY AT FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees Compensation are a critical tool in
the successful execution of our corporate goals. Attracting, motivating and retaining
talent is central to our compensation policy. The philosophy revolves around pay for
performance and guides our compensation decisions for all Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and Employees including the senior management. We believe in being totally
compliant to the Companies Act, 2013, RBI Guidelines as well as all other regulatory
requirements, as amended from time to time.

1. OBJECTIVES OF THE COMPENSATION POLICY

a)

b)
c)

d)

To focus on enhancing the value and to attract and retain quality individuals with
requisite knowledge and excellence as Executive and Non-Executive Directors for
achieving objectives of the Company and to place the Company in a leading
position.

To attract and retain talented Key Managerial Personnel and employees.

To reward and motivate employees on holistic achievement of their goals including
financial and non- financial parameters.

Reinforce a business culture that drives meritocracy and supports accountability
and zero tolerance for unethical conduct through appropriate compensation and
employment decisions.

Develop and enforce risk management controls that reduce incentives to create
imprudent risks for Fino Finance Private Limited (FFPL) and its businesses, and
reward thoughtful balance of risk and return as guided by regulatory instructions
from time to time.

2. SCOPE

All Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of Fino Finance Private Limited
(FFPL).

Definition(s)

1

2.

. Director and Whole-time Director shall mean Director and Whole-time Director as

defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

“‘Key Managerial Personnel” (KMP) as defined in section 2(51) of the Companies
Act, 2013 means:
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e the Chief Executive Officer or the Managing Director or the Manager;

o the Company Secretary;

¢ the Whole-time Director;

e the Chief Financial Officer;

e such other officer, not more than one level below the Directors who is in
whole-time employment, designated as Key Managerial Personnel by the
Board; and

e such other officer as may be prescribed.

3. Employee means a full time employee of Fino Finance Private Limited.
3. GUIDING PRINCIPLES
3.1 Governance/Guidelines

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee shall, while formulating the policy ensure
that—

(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract,
retain and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company
successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management
involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its
goals:

While deciding the policy on remuneration of Directors, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee may consider amongst other things, the duties and
responsibilities cast by the Companies Act, 2013, the Listing Regulations, various Codes
of Conduct, Articles of Association, restrictions on the remuneration to Directors as also
the remuneration drawn by Directors of other companies in the industry, the valuable
contributions and inputs from Directors based on their knowledge, experience and
expertise in shaping the destiny of the Company, etc. The Policy is guided by a reward
framework and set of principles and objectives as more fully and particularly envisaged
under Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and principles pertaining to
gualifications, positive attributes, integrity and independence of Directors, etc.
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The guidelines that govern the Compensation policy and programs of FFPL are actively
overseen by the Nomination & Remuneration Committee (NRC) of the board and
administered by the Human Resources Department with the key goals of hiring,
motivating, rewarding and retaining high performing employees who support the
organization’s mission and strategy.

The NRC monitors and reviews the compensation policy and ensures that the same is
implemented as intended.

DIRECTORS

The Whole-time Director is an executive of the Company and draws remuneration from
the Company. The Independent Directors receive sitting fees for attending the meeting
of the Board and the Committees thereof, as fixed by the Board of Directors from time to
time, subject to statutory provisions. The Independent Directors may be entitled to the
remuneration under the Companies Act, 2013. Nominee Directors are not paid any
sitting fees or any remuneration. In addition to the above, the Directors are entitled for
reimbursement of expenses incurred in discharge of their duties.

The NRC while determining the remuneration shall ensure that the level and composition
of remuneration to be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the person
to ensure the quality required to run the Company successfully. While considering the
remuneration, the NRC shall also ensure a balance between fixed and performance-
linked variable pay reflecting short and long term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the Company and its goals.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The term of office and remuneration of Executive Directors are subject to the approval of
the Board of Directors, Shareholders, and Central Government, as may be required and
the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

If, in any financial year, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the
Company shall pay, subject to the requisite approvals, remuneration to its Executive
Directors in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

If any Executive Director draws or receives, directly or indirectly by way of remuneration
any such sums in excess of the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 or
without the prior sanction of the Central Government, where required, he/she shall
refund such sums to the Company and until such sum is refunded, hold it in trust for the
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Company. The Company shall not waive recovery of such sum refundable to it unless
permitted by the Central Government.

Remuneration of the Executive Directors reflects the overall remuneration philosophy
and guiding principle of the Company. While considering the appointment and
remuneration of Executive Directors, the NRC shall consider the industry benchmarks,
merit and seniority of the person and shall ensure that the remuneration proposed to be
paid is commensurate with the remuneration packages paid to similar senior level
counterpart(s) in other companies. Remuneration for Executive Director is designed
subject to the limits laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 to remunerate them fairly
and responsibly. The remuneration to the Executive Director comprises of salary,
perquisites and performance based incentive apart from retirement benefits like
Provident Fund, Superannuation, Gratuity, Leave Encashment, etc., as per Rules of the
Company. Salary is paid within the range approved by the Shareholders. Increments are
effective as recommended/ approved by the NRC/Board.

The Executive Director(s) is/are entitled to the Stock Options of the Holding Company as
per the approved Stock Option Scheme of the Holding Company from time to time.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Independent Directors (NEDs) are paid remuneration by way of Sitting Fees.

At present, the Company pays sitting fees to the Independent Directors for attending the
meetings of the Board and the Committees constituted by the Board from time to time.

Disclosures

Information on the total remuneration of members of the Company’s Board of Directors,
Executive Directors and Key Managerial Personnel/ Senior Management Personnel may
be disclosed in the Board’s Report and the Company’s Annual Report/ Website as per
statutory requirements laid down in this regard.

3.2 Compliance
To comply with all the relevant laws, rules, statutes and regulations related to

compensation defined from time to time. Human Resources functions periodically
provides compliance certificate to the Board and Nomination Remuneration Committee.
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3.3 Compensation Communication

An important objective of the Compensation Policy is to provide all relevant internal and
external parties with appropriate information and transparency, thereby promoting a
thorough understanding of the FFPL’s Compensation practices.

3.4 Performance

FFPL adopts a performance culture with a strong emphasis on disciplined risk
management, ethics and compliance-centered behavior. To support this, FFPL has a
comprehensive performance management system policy based on performance rating of
contribution and any risk adjusted performances demonstrated over time. Contribution
ratings are typically based on objective criteria such as achieving targets or successful
completion of projects. The Key Performance Indicators of the Whole-time Directors and
KMPs and Employees are very well articulated and communicated at the beginning of
the year.

Performance Management Systems are designed to foster team work and collaboration,

as well as support a strong culture of ethical values and professional standards. All
Whole-time Directors, KMPs, managers and employees are aware of the risk aspects of
compensation and how their behaviors are factored into discretionary variable incentive
award recommendations.

3.5 Market Trends and Practices

In order to maintain internal parity and ensure alignment with market trends and industry
best practices, Human Resources Compensation Vertical will undertake benchmarking
exercises from time to time and present to NRC their recommendations in line with the
compensation policy for hiring and retention of human resources.

3.6 Periodic Review

The total compensation is reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it is in line with
organizational growth and risk adjusted value creation. This also provides us an
opportunity to review claw back on any performance based incentive payout.

3.7 Hedging

FFPL does not provide any facility or funds to insure or hedge their compensation to
offset the risk involved.
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4. Components of Total Compensation
4.1Fixed Pay

Fixed Pay is the fixed payments to Whole-time Director, KMP and Employees on a
monthly basis for the services rendered. Fixed Pay is a percentage of the total
compensation. Fixed pay for each Whole-time Director, KMP or employee will differ
depending on the years of experience, the job role, and tenure in job, job responsibilities
and job performance and the Grade. Fixed Pay comprises of components like Basic
Salary, House Rent Allowance, Special Allowances, etc. Further any statutory payments
such as Provident Fund, Gratuity will be made.

4.2 Earning Potential or Variable Pay

Earning potential or Variable Pay is percentage of compensation and the percentage
differs depending on the seniority and job role. The percentage varies in the range of
10% - 30% of compensation.

Earning Potential or Variable Pay is a payout made to the individual depending on the
performance of the company and his or her individual performance and other risk
adjusted value creation appropriate to role and responsibilities and may be zero in case
of sub- standard performance. The Earning Potential Payout is not made in case the
Whole-time Director, KMP or Employee chooses to leave the firm. The Earning potential
or Variable payout does not constitute of any Guaranteed Bonus.

4.3 Deferred Compensation Component

As a Company we do not offer Deferred Bonus payouts in cash to our Whole-time
Director, KMP or Employees. However in case the company at a future date increases
the proportion of Variable pay and it exceeds 50% of compensation subject to
appropriate approvals from NRC then such incremental payment will be deferred over a
period of 3 years. Such Variable Compensation will also be subject to Malus and Claw
backs and will need Whole-time Director, KMP or Employees to sign relevant
declarations whenever necessary.

4.4 Specific Compensation Components

Aside from the annual compensation review process, there are many compensation
components throughout the year. The most common relate to new hires or terminations
and may entail minimum variable compensation such as joining bonus, buy-out
arrangements or termination payments.
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In such components claw back options are exercised. Such compensation is limited to
the year of event only.

The NRC and the Board of Directors have empowered the Whole-time Director to
approve the use of such transactions when fully justified and under applicable rules.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Place: Navi Mumbai Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Date: September 22, 2022 Independent Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 00812946) (DIN: 07899859)
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ANNEXURE -B
Annexure to the Boards’ Report

INFORMATION RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, R&D, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND INNOVATION, AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS/ OUTGO
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS’ REPORT IN TERMS OF SECTION 134 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

A. Conservation of Energy

The Company has undertaken several initiatives at its registered office such as:

Installed energy efficient LED lights.

e Most of the lights and air condition units are switched off after 7 pm. Only
required lights are put on to save on wastage of energy. Switching off all the
workstation area AC’s during lunch time from 1 p.m. to 2 p.m. except cafeteria.

e Power factor has been maintained constantly through use of Capacitor bank.

¢ |Installed sun control film & blinds across office to keep office cool and to save on
AC consumption.

The Company has been consciously making efforts towards improving the energy
performance year on year.

B. Research & Development

During the year under review, the Company had conducted various R & D activities
in the following areas:

1. Mobile Enrollment:

Mobile enrollment app is used to enroll new customers as well as existing customers
of lending through Aadhaar based e-KYC with credit check (Equifax & Highmark).

In Enrollment app, RD service application has also been used to ensure that FP
capture device is registered with UIDAI and is secure.

Consolidating of multiple mobile applications (enrollment + repayment application) in
a single application
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Loan repayment app is used to upload repayments collection transaction.

FINO Mitra app is used for Loan processes activity like CGT, GRT, HHV and LUC.
Non-eKYC process for on boarding new customers had been enabled.
Functionality and Features:

e Geo location — all application are capturing live location coordinates (Lat+Long).

e Logins — all app are having centralize auth login.

e BT Print - both the applications are having feature of BT printing and FP
capturing.

e FP Capture - RD service application is used while capturing FP to ensure safety
and security.

¢ Auto upload - application are having feature of auto upload based on a fixed time
duration.

e e-KYC - customers are verified and get their detail through Aadhar based e-KYC.

e Credit Check - Enrollment application allows credit check of customer based on
credit bureau (Equifax & Highmark).

2. MSME Loan Integration:

MSME loans are individual business loans which are provided for business
expansion. These loans are provided in two types i.e. secured and unsecured.

Collection is done on monthly basis.

Charges collected at the time of disbursement are stamp duty, processing
fees, Documentation charges, insurance, and commitment fees.

All the process from loan application to loan collection is done from ELMS.
3. Monitoring and Analytical Report:

Elms Provides various detailed and summarized report. Some sample report
details are as follows:

a) Customer Stage report is available which help to the Company to identify at
what stage the customer is present.
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b) Demand report gives information about the customer demand and its
collection Status.

The Company has also provided a separate lending dashboard which provided
pictorial representation. Currently dashboard is present to monitor Demand V/S
Collection and center meeting status.

4. Security

The Company has implemented a comprehensive security stack for the IT
Infrastructure. The security stack implemented for providing exceptional alters to
monitor and take necessary action to protect any fraudulent activity. The covers
all servers and network devises.

e Anti-virus and Anti Malware System

¢ Intrusion Prevention Systems(IPS)

¢ Intrusion Detection Systems(IDS)

e Firewalls

e Various monitoring mechanisms deployed using the above tools,
alerts are monitored online and daily basis to ensure high level
security.

C. Technology absorption
Integration of Credit Bureau:
Credit check is required to confirm credit worthiness of a customer.

Equifax/Highmark is used to check the credit report. Based on the credit report
loan is given to the customers.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Place: Navi Mumbai Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Date: September 22, 2022 Independent Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 00812946) (DIN: 07899859)
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Annexure-C

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

Disclosures with respect to the remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Employees as
required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, are as under:

Name of the Director/

Ratio of the remuneration
of each Director to median

Sr.No.|Disclosure requirement KMP Designation remuneration of
Employees
Mr. Ashok Kini Independent Director NA
Dr. Anjana Grewal Independent Director NA
Ratio of the remuneration of each Mr. Ramakrishna Kumar . _
Director to the median remuneration of |\/octq # Nominee Director NA
the employees of the Company for the — -
Financial Year 2021-22 Mr. Sudeep Gupta Whole-time Director 44.24
Mr. Praveer Kumar$ Chief Financial Officer NA
Mr. Jitendra Garg* Company Secretary NA
*Resigned with effect from 7th March, 2022
$ Resigned with effect from 10th December, 2021
# Resigned with effect from 3rd March, 2022
<Sitting fees is not considered in this part.
Mr. Ashok Kini Independent Director NA
) ) i Dr. Anjana Grewal Independent Director NA
Percentage increase in Remuneration of Mr_Ramakrishna Kumar
each Director, Chief Financial Officer and|,, Nominee Director NA
; . . |Vesta #
Company Secretary during the Financial - -
Year 2021-22 Mr. Sudeep Gupta Whole-time Director NA
Mr. Praveer Kumar$ Chief Financial Officer NA
Mr. Jitendra Garga* Company Secretary NA
*Resigned with effect from 3rd March, 2022
$ Resgined with effect from 10th December, 2021
# Resgined with effect from 7th March, 2022
<Sitting fees is not considered in this part.
Percentage increase in the median
3 |Remuneration of employees in the NA
Financial Year 2021-22
Number of Permanent employees on the
4 (rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 325
2022.
Average percentile increase already
made in the salaries of employees other
than the Managerial Personnel in the last
Financial Year i.e. 2021-22 and its
5 |comparison with the percentile increase NA
in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and point out if there
are any exceptional circumstances for
increase in the managerial remuneration
Affirmation that the remuneration is as
6 |per the Remuneration Policy of the Yes

Company

Navi Mumbai
Date: September 22, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Ashok Kini
Independent Director
(DIN: 00812946)

FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Sudeep Gupta
Whole-time Director
(DIN: 07899859)
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Annexure - D

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length

transactions under third proviso thereto

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

DATE: SEPTEMBER 22, 2022

Independent Director
(DIN: 00812946)

Whole-time Director
(DIN: 07899859)

Sl No. | Particulars Amount (in Rs.) | | | | Amount (in Rs.)
Details of contracts or arrangements or There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended 31st March, 2022, which were not at arm’s length basis.
1 [Jtransactions not at arm's length basis
I | | I |
2 |Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis
(a) |Name(s) of the related party and nature]Fino Payments Bank Ltd. -]JFino Payments Bank Ltd. -]JFino PayTech Limited. -|Fino PayTech Limited. -|Fino PayTech Limited. -
of relationship Fellow Subsidiary Fellow Subsidiary Holding Company Holding Company Holding Company
(b) [Nature of|Business Faciliation Service |Cash Management Services |Reimbursement of Corporate Guarantee FLDG Payment on behalf of
contracts/arrangements/transactions Expenses Commission payable the Holding Company in
relation to the BC lending
business with the Indusind
bank
(c) |Duration of the]01 April 21 to 31 March 22 01 April 21 to 31 March 22 01 April 21 to 31 March 22 |01 April 21 to 31 March 22 01 April 21 to 31 March 22
contracts/arrangements/transactions
(d) |Salient terms of the contracts or|No. of Branches X fixed cost]At Actuals- As per Agreement At Actual - Transaction value|At Actual - Transaction value of JAt Actual - Transaction value
arrangements or transactions including|per branch per month - Rs. of Rs. 60,21,587/- Rs. 5,13,364/- of Rs. 9,92,07,582/-
the value, if any: 1,40,04,360/-
(e) |Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A.
(f)  JAmount paid as advances, if any: Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited
PLACE: NAVI MUMBAI Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
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Annexure-E
Related Party Transactions
Sr. Particulars Amount at the | Maximum amount
No. year end i.e. outstanding during
31.03.2022 the year
(Rs.) (Rs.)

1 Loans and advances in the nature of Nil Nil
loans to holding company by name
and amount.

2 Loans and advances in the nature of Nil Nil
loans to associates by name and
amount.

3 Loans and advances in the nature of Nil Nil
loans to firms/companies in which
directors are interested by name and
amount

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED
Place: Navi Mumbai Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Date: September 22, 2022 Independent Director Whole-time Director

(DIN: 00812946) (DIN: 07899859)
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Annexure-F

DM & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP
(LLPIN NO. AAI-4743)

[Firm Registration No: L2017MHO003500] [Peer Review Certificate: 758/2020]
REGD. OFFICE: # 205, NADIADWALA MARKET, PODDAR ROAD, MALAD (EAST), MUMBAI-400097
Tel No. 022-28443641 Email: dmassociatesllp@gmail.com

Form No. MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

For the Financial Year Ended March 31, 2022

To,

The Members,

FINO Finance Private Limited
Mindspace Juinagar, 9th Floor,

Plot No. Gen 2/1/F, Tower 1,

TTC Industrial Area, MIDC Shirwane,
Juinagar, Navi Mumbai

Thane - 400706

Dear Members,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by FINO Finance Private Limited (hereinafter called “the
Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for
evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby
report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended
March 31, 2022, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company
has proper Board-processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the
provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;
(if) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder;

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial borrowings were not applicable to the company during Audit Period);

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange

Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015;
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008; and
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DM & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

(LLPIN NO. AAI-4743)

[Firm Registration No: L2017MHO003500] [Peer Review Certificate: 758/2020]
REGD. OFFICE: # 205, NADIADWALA MARKET, PODDAR ROAD, MALAD (EAST), MUMBAI-400097

Tel No. 022-28443641 Email: dmassociatesllp@gmail.com

C.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible
Securities) Regulations, 2021.

Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI’) were not applicable to the Company for the financial year under

review-

f.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999 and the Securities Exchange Board
of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993, regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;

We have relied on the representation made by the Company and its Officers for systems and
mechanism formed by the Company for compliances under other applicable Acts, Laws and
Regulations to the Company.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on
examination of the relevant documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test check basis, the
Company has complied with the following laws applicable specifically to the Company:

The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934;

Non-Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;
Master Directions on Non-Banking Financial Company - Systemically Important Non-
Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;
Reserve Bank of India (Know Your Customer-KY C) Directions, 2016;

Master Directions on Non-Banking Financial Company Returns (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2016 and as amended time to time;

The Reserve Bank - Integrated Ombudsman Scheme, 2021;

Master Direction - Monitoring of Frauds in NBFCs (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016;

Master Direction - Information Technology Framework for the NBFC Sector.

1.
2.
3.

6.
7.
8.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
a. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

b. The Listing Agreement entered into by the Company with BSE Limited (For its listed NCDs)
pursuant to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulation 2015;
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DM & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP
(LLPIN NO. AAI-4743)

[Firm Registration No: L2017MHO003500] [Peer Review Certificate: 758/2020]
REGD. OFFICE: # 205, NADIADWALA MARKET, PODDAR ROAD, MALAD (EAST), MUMBAI-400097
Tel No. 022-28443641 Email: dmassociatesllp@gmail.com

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive
Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the
Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with
the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and for meeting convened under shorter notice, were
in compliance with section 173(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for
meaningful participation at the meeting.

All decisions at Board Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the minutes of the
meetings of the Board of Directors.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the following specific events took place:

1. Non-Convertible Debenture:

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on June 24, 2021 approved raising of funds not
exceeding Rs. 100 crore by way of issuance of Non — Convertible Debentures and/or Sub-
ordinated Debentures and accordingly, shareholders approved the same at Annual General
Meeting held on September 30, 2021 by passing special resolution;

2. Alteration of Memorandum of Association:

The Company by passing special resolution at its Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on
September 28, 2021 altered the provisions of its Memorandum of Association by altering the
capital clause for increase in Authorised Capital from existing Rs.16,00,00,000 (Rupees
Sixteen Crore only) divided into 1,60,00,000 (One Crore Sixty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.
10/- each to Rs. 53,50,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Three Crore Fifty Lakh only) divided into
5,35,00,000 (Five Crore Thirty-Five Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each;

3. Rights Issue:
The Board at its meeting held on:
a. September 29, 2021 allotted 2,50,00,000 (Two Crore Fifty Lakh) equity shares of face

value of Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 50,00,00,000/-
(Rupees Fifty Crore only) and
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DM & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP
(LLPIN NO. AAI-4743)

[Firm Registration No: L2017MHO003500] [Peer Review Certificate: 758/2020]
REGD. OFFICE: # 205, NADIADWALA MARKET, PODDAR ROAD, MALAD (EAST), MUMBAI-400097
Tel No. 022-28443641 Email: dmassociatesllp@gmail.com

b. February 8, 2022 allotted 55,00,000 (Fifty Five Lakh) equity shares of face value of
Rs.10/- each at a premium of Rs. 10/- each aggregating to Rs. 11,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Elven Crore only)
on rights basis to Fino Paytech Limited, its holding company.

For DM & Associates Company Secretaries LLP
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique Code L2017MH003500

Dinesh Kumar Deora
Senior Partner

FCS NO 5683

C P NO 4119

UDIN: F005683D000570401
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 05, 2022

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date that is annexed as Annexure - | and
forms an integral part of this report.
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DM & ASSOCIATES COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP
(LLPIN NO. AAI-4743)

[Firm Registration No: L2017MHO003500] [Peer Review Certificate: 758/2020]
REGD. OFFICE: # 205, NADIADWALA MARKET, PODDAR ROAD, MALAD (EAST), MUMBAI-400097
Tel No. 022-28443641 Email: dmassociatesllp@gmail.com

To

ANNEXURE - |

The Members,

FINO Finance Private Limited
Mindspace Juinagar, 9th Floor,

Plot No. Gen 2/1/F, Tower 1,

TTC Industrial Area, MIDC Shirwane,
Juinagar, Navi Mumbai

Thane — 400706

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of management of the Company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe

that the processes and practices, we followed provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of

accounts of the Company.

Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representation about the compliance

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules and
regulations, standards is the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited

to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company
nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of

the Company.

For DM & Associates Company Secretaries LLP
Company Secretaries
ICSI Unique Code L2017MH003500

Dinesh Kumar Deora
Senior Partner

FCS NO 5683

C P NO 4119

UDIN: F005683D000570401
Place: Mumbai

Date: July 05, 2022
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Annexure-G

Details of Debenture Trustees:

Name Contact Details

Catalyst Trusteeship Limited Windsor,6" floor, Office
No0.604,C.S.TRoad,kalina,Santacruz (East)
Mumbai 400098

Board : 91 22 4922 0546
Fax : 91 22 4922 0505
www.catalysttrustee.com

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
FINO FINANCE PRIVATE LIMITED

Place: Navi Mumbai Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Date: September 22, 2022 Independent Director Whole-time Director
(DIN: 00812946) (DIN: 07899859)
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7% TIBREWAL CHAND & CO Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 059
5\ | CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Contact : 491 72088 25125

Email: contact@tibrewalchand.com

1001, Sumer Plaza, Marol Maroshi Road,

Independent Auditor’s Report

To

The Members

Fino Finance Private Limited

Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Fino Finance Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the statement of Profit and
Loss and the statement of Cash Flow for the year ended, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements, give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and are in conformity with the Indian Accounting
standards prescribed under section 133 of the act read with the companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules , 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India
and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022 and its profit
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
{SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
~ our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statement and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in Director’s report, but does not include the financial
statements and our auditors report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information, and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact to those charged with governance under SA
720 "The Auditors responsibility Relatmg to Other Information’. We have nothing to report in this
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regard.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"} with respect to the preparation of these financial statements, that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Company in accordance with the accounting standards and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provision of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern , disclosing as applicable , matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or cease the Company’s operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SA's will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material, if individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
economic decision of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
profession skepticism throughout the audit. We alse,

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements whether due
to fraud or error design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for resulting from
error as fraud may involve collusion forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation or the
override of internal control.

¥ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we
are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financials controls system in place and operating effectiveness of such contrals.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.




¥ Conclude on the appropriateness of management use of the going concern basis of accounting
and based on the audit evidence obtained whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as
going concern. If we conclude that material uncertainty exists we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report te the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such
disclosures are inadequate to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However future events or conditions
may cause Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation structure and content of the standalone financial statements
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in the manner that achieves fair presentation.

We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning of the scope of our audit
work and evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatement in the financial statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding among other matters the
planned scope and timing of the significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied relevant
ethical requirements independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and where applicable related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company as of and for the year ended 31 March 2021
prepared in accordance with Accounting Standards included in the financial statement have been
audited by the predecessor auditor. The report of the predecessor auditor on the comparative

financial statement information dated 24 June 2021 expressed an unmodified opinion.

Qur opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other lLegal and Regulatory
requirements below is not modified in respect of this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the central
government of india in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in “Annexure A"
a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we further report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;




b)

g)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance sheet, the Profit and Loss Account, the statement of changes in equity and the Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the companies (Accounts} Rules
2014.

On the basis of the written representation received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the board of directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on March 31,
2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report |
‘Annexure B,

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us;

» The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position. ’

» The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses; and

» There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

> A)Under Rule 11(e)(i)

The Management has represented that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

B) Under Rule 11(e) (ii)

The Management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (Funding Parties), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, as on the date of this audit report, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

€} Under Rule 11{e) (iii)

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, and according to the information and explanations
provided to us by the Management in this regard, nothing has come to our notice that has




caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause A) and B) above, contain any
material mis-statement.

h) The Company has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is a Private
Company, the provisions of section 197 of the Act will not be applicable.

Yours Sincerely

For Tibrewal Chand & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 311047E

\L;L-J R

Vishal Rathi

Partner

Membership No.: 126244
UDIN: 22126244AMCDHU9737
Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 May 2022




ANNEXURE A TO BE THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report of even date)

(1) In respect of the company’s fixed assets :

a.

(i)

(iii)

The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including guantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets.

The fixed assets of the Company have been physically verified by the Management in
accordance with the regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for
physical verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervals. According to the
information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies have been noticed on
such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there are no immovable properties (other than
properties where the company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in
favour of the lessee) which are held in the name of the Company. Accordingly, the
requirements under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not revalued
its property, plant and Equipment (including Right of Use assets} and its intangible assets.
Accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(i}(d} of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has been initiated
or pending against the Company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(i) (e) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, we report that;

a. The Company is involved in the business of rendering services. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph (ii) (a} of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 ¢rores in
aggregate from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.
Quarterly returns / statements are filed with such Banks/ financial institutions are in

- agreement with the hooks of account.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, we report that;

a. As the principal business of the Company is to give loans. Accordingly, the provision
stated in paragraph 3(iii) () is not applicable to the company.

b. In relation fo investments, guarantees provided, securities given, according to the
information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures performed
by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the loans and advances
provided are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.




¢. In case of the loans and advances in the nature of loan, schedule of repayment of
principal and payment of interest have been stipulated and the borrowers have been
regular in the payment of the principal and interest.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the details of amount overdue for more
than ninety days are as follows:

No. of | Principal Interest Total overdue | Remarks (specify whether reasonable
Cases | amount overdue steps have been taken by the
overdue Company for recovery of principal

amount and interest)

27,109 | 27,86,17,892.47 | 7,12,04,143 | 34,98,22,035.46 | The company has delinquency

management policy which contains
recovery steps to be taken for overdue
cases and the company is adhering to
the said policy.

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

e. Since, the principal business of the Company is to give loans. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3(iii)(e) is not applicable to the company.

In gur opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other
person in whom the director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185
of the Act and the Company has not made investments through more than two layers of
investment companies in accordance with the provisions of section 186 of the Act
Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not accepted
any deposit during the year and hence directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and
the provisions of sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provision of the act and rules
framed thereunder are not applicable.

Having regard to the nature of the company’s business/activities, reporting under clause
(vi) of CARO 2020 with respect to maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the
Act is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, we report that in respect of statutory dues:

a. The company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, Employees State insurance, income tax, Goods and service tax
and other material statutory dues applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.

Having regard to the nature of the company’s business/activities, excise duty and cess is
not applicable and activities of the company did not give rise to due on account of
customs duty.

b. According to the information and explanaticns given to us, undisputed dues in respect
of provident fund, employee’s state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory
dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.




Statutory dues which were outstanding, as at March 31, 2021 for a period of more than

six months from the date they became payable are as follows:

1. Nature of dues: Provident fund

Nature of Statue Amount | Period to which Due Date Date of Remarks
(Rs)) amount relates Payment

Department of Not Yet
Commercial Taxes 604 Nov-17 15-Dec-17 | Paid
Department of Not Yet
Commercial Taxes 755 Dec-17 15-Jan-18 | Paid
Department of Not Yet
Commercial Taxes 755 Jan-18 15-Feb-18 | Paid Skipped employees
Department of Not Yet PF not deposited
Commercial Taxes | 3,677 Feb-18 |  15-Mar-18 | Paid due to UAN not
PF Department of Not Yet getting _generated
Commercial Taxes | 1,509 Mar-18|  15-Apr-18 | Paid due N Kyc
Department of Not Yet Lnalzr}?:;l? Al U 1;:13
Commercial Taxes 755 Apr-18 15-May-18 | Paid ot gen;erate d case
Department of Not Yet is Inactive
Commercial Taxes 1,488 Jul-18 15-Aug-18 | Paid employee and
Department of Not Yet follow up for the
Commercial Taxes 738 Aug-18 15-Sep-18 | Paid closure of the same
Department of Not Yet is going on.
Commercial Taxes 2,282 Mar-20 15-Apr-20 | Paid
Department of Not Yet
Commercial Taxes 1,892 Apr-20 15-May-20 | Paid
Department of Not Yet
Commercial Taxes 56 Aug-20 15-Sep-20 | Paid

2. Nature of dues: Income tax

Nature

Amount

Period to which amount
relates

Forum where dispute is pending

Remarks, if
Any

Income tax

10,54,533

2017-18

CIT Appeals

NA

(viii)

(ix)

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which

are not accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there is no previously
unrecorded income which has been now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the
provision stated in paragraph 3({viii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, we report that;

a. The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings or in payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

b. The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or government or any government authority.




()

(xi}

(xii)

(xiii)

¢. In our opinion and according to the information explanation provided to us, money
raised by way of term loans during the year have been applied for the purpose for
which they were raised.

d. According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures
performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the
company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for
long-term purposes by the company.

e. The company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to
meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f. The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in
its securities, joint ventures or associate companies,

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, we report that;

a. The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph 3 (x)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based
on our examination of the records of the Company, the Company has made private
placement of shares and the requirements of Section 42 of the Act have been complied
with. The amount raised has been used for the purposes for which they were raised.

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company,
carried out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and
according to the information and explanations given to us,

a. During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according
to the information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any
instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company during the course of our
audit except the company has reported frauds of Rs. 14.05 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.
9.06 Lakh) to the RBL

b. We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the
Company during the course of audit of the financial statement for the year ended March
31, 2022, except the company has reported frauds of Rs. 14.05 Lakhs (Previous year Rs.
9.06 Lakh} to the RBL

c. As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints
received by the Company during the course of audit. Accordingly, the provision stated
in paragraph (xi) {c) of the Order is not applicable to company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xii) (a) to (c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable and details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting




(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

standards.

The company has internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of the
business and we have considered Internal Audit reports issued by Internal Auditors during
the audit.

In our opinion and-according to the information and explanations given to us, during the
year the company has not entered into any Non-Cash transactions with its directors or
directors of its holdings, subsidiary or associates company or persons connected with them
and hence provisions of sections 192 of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations give to us, in respect of Registration RBI Act;

a. The Company is required to and has been registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as Non-Banking Financial Company (“"NBFC").

b. In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from Reserve Bank of
India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi){b) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company

¢. The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(c)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

d. The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in
paragraph xvi (d) of the order are not applicable to the company.

Based on the overall review of financial statements, the company has incurred cash losses in
the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial year. The details of the
same are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2022 (Rs. In Lakhs)  [March 31, 2021 {Rs. In Lakhs)

Cash Losses -1,508.79 -558.84

There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and there were no
issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
financial ratios, ageing and expected date of realization of financial assets and payment of
liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone financial statements, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans, we are of the opinion that no
material uncertainty exists as on the date of audit report and the company is capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of
the Act are not applicable to the Company. Hence, the provisions of paragraph (xx) (a) to (b)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.




(xxi)  Since company is standalone entity and hence reporting under clause (xxi) of CARQ 2020
with respect to Qualification or adverse remarks in CARO reports of group companies is not
applicable.

Yours Sincerely

For Tibrewal Chand & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 311047E

Vishal Rathi

Partner

Membership No.: 126244
UDIN: 22126244AMCDHU9737
Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 May 2022




Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
under Clause {i) of Sub - section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting of Fino Finance Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements
of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting.

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the its business, including adherence to Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial control over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and
Standards on Auditing ("the Standard"}, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section
143(10] of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial control over financial
reporting, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controis operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur Audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controi over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing an evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

A Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and disposition of the assets of the Company; {2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of




the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management of the
Company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Control over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitation of internal financial control over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2022 based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company, considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI

Yours Sincerely

For Tibrewal Chand & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reg. No.: 311047E

o &

Vishal Rathi

Partner

Membership No.: 126244
UDIN: 22126244AMCDHU9737
Place: Mumbai

Date: 28 May 2022




Fino Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1. 1.

1.2

1.2.1

12.2

1.2.3

1.2.4

Background

Fino Finance Private Limited (henceforth referred to as ‘the Company”) was incorporated on 8
March 1994. The Company is non-banking financial company — Non-systematically important -
non-deposit accepting (NBFC-NSI-ND) registered with the RBI.

It is engaged in providing finance to poor women in rural areas of India who are organized as
Joint Liability Groups (‘JLG"). The company has been NBFC-Micro Finance Institution NBFC-
MFT) License with effect from 9th March 2015.

Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation of financial statements

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) to comply with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 2013 Act™),
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other relevant provisions
of the Act and Rules there under, as amended from time to time.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to the existing accounting standard requires a change in
the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is the Company’s
functional currency. All amounts have been rounded off to two decimal places to the nearest
lakhs, unless otherwise indicated.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost convention on the accrual
basts except for the following items:

e certain financial assets and liabilities that may be measured at fair value; and

¢ share-based payments.

Presentation of Financial Statement

The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss are prepared and presented in the format
prescribed in the Division IIl of Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) applicable
for Non-Banking Finance Companies (“NBFC”). The Statement of Cash Flows has been
prepared and presented as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 “Statement of Cash Flows”.




Fino Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1.2.5

Use of estimates and judgments

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the
following estimates and judgments, which have a significant impact on the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date.

Betermination of the estimated useful lives and residual value of assets

Useful lives of assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act,
2013. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule 11,
useful lives and residual values are based on technical advice, taking into account the nature
of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past
history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and
maintenance support,

Recognition and measurement of defired benefit obligations

The obligation arising from defined benefit plan is determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation using projected unit method. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. Key actuarial
assumptions include discount rate, trends in salary escalation, actuarial rates and life
expectancy and withdrawal rate. The discount rate is determined by reference to market
vields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. The period to maturity of the
underlying bonds correspond to the probable maturity of the post-employment benefit
obligations. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a
defined benefit obligation is sensitive to changes in these assumptions.These assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of
temporary differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases, and unutilized business loss and depreciation carry-forwards and tax
credits, at the rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,
Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses,
depreciation carry-forwards and unused tax credits could be utilized. Accordingly, the
Company exercises its judgment to reassess the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the
end of each reporting period.

Expected credit loss

Expected credit loss is to be recognised for financial assets when upon assessment, the credit
risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. The
measurement of ECL includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on Company’s historical experience and credit assessment including the incorporation
of forward-looking information.

The inputs used and process followed by the Company in determining the ECL have been
detailed in Note 27.
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1.2.5 Use of estimates and judgments (Continued)
e Fair valuation of employee share options

The fair valuation of the employee share options is based on the Black-Scholes model used
for valuation of options. Key assumptions made with respect to expected volatility includes
share price, expected dividends and discount rate, under this option pricing model. The
assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for share based payments transactions
are discussed in Note 30.

¢ Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of the financial assets and liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on the quoted market prices in active markets, their fair value is
measured using valuation technique. The inputs to these models are taken from the
observable market where possible, but where this is not feasible, a review of judgement is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements include consideration of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

e Recognition and measurement of other provisions

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the
probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known at
the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary
from the amount included in other provisions.

e Effective interest rate

All financial assets/liabilities are required to be measured at fair value on initial recognition,
In case of financial assets which are required to subsequently measured at amortised cost,
interest is accrued using the effective interest method.

The ‘effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected behavioral life of the financial asset to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgment regarding the expected behavior
and life-cycle of the instruments, the effect of potentially different interest rates at various
stages and other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty
interest and charges) as well expected changes to the base rate and other transaction costs
and fees paid or received that are integral parts of the instrument.

¢ Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a
lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is
reasonably certain. Assessment is made on the expected lease term on a lease-by-leasebasis
and thereby it assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or
terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers
factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs
refating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the underlying asset to
companies operations taking into account the location of the underlying asset and the
availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periodsiEreassessed to ensure
that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances., ¢ '

4
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1.2.5 Use of estimates and judgments (Continued)

After considering current and future economic conditions, the Company has concluded that
no changes are required to lease period relating to the existing lease coniracts.The
determination of the incremental borrowing rate used to measure lease liabilities.

Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgment reflecting all relevant evidence including how the
performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect
the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the
assets are compensated. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of
whether the business model for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model
and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

COVID 19

The Company has considered the possible effects that may resuit from the pandemic relating
to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in
subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in
the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information
including credit reports and related information, economic forecasts. The impact of COVID-
19 on the Company's financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of
approval of these financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with Ind AS requires use of estimates
and assumptions for some items, which might have an effect on their recognition and
measurement in the balance sheet, statement of profit and loss and disclosure of contingent
liabilities. The actual amounts realized may differ from these estimates. Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and
reasonable. The estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised,and future periods are affected. The estimates and judgements that have significant
impact on the carrying amount of assets and liabilities at each balance sheet date are
discussed in Note 1.2.5.

1.2.6 Measurement of fair values

The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for
financial instraments,

When measuring the fair value of a financial asset or a financial lability, the Company uses
observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a
fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows.

Level I: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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1.2.6

1.2.7

Measuarement of fair values (Continued)

®  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inpuis).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same
level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level iput that is significant to the entire
measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Property, plant and equipment

i. Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

a) its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after
deducting trade discounts and rebates;

b} any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary
for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

¢) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site
on which it is located, the obligation for which an entity incurs either when the item is
acquired or as a consequence of having used the item during a particular period for purposes
other than to produce inventories during that period;

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, are recognised in profit or loss.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then
they are accounted and depreciated for as separate items (major components) of property, plant
and equipment.

Property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use.Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of fixed assets outstanding at each balance sheet date are
disclosed as other non- current assets or other current assets as applicable. The cost of fixed
assets not ready for their intended use at each balance sheet date is disclosed as capital work-in-
progress.
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12,7 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

il. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Hi. Depreciation

Depreciation is provided as per the useful life on written down value as under Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013, except in case of Computers (excluding servers), where the management
estimates the useful lives to be 5 years instead of 3 years and plant & machinery , where the
management estimates the useful lives to be 5 years instead of 8 vyears as prescribed under
Schedule IT,

Assets costing less than INR 5,000 are depreciated at 100% in the year of acquisition.The
Company uniformly estimates a zero residual value for all these assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate. Based on technical evaluation of management and consequent advice,
the management believes that its estimates of useful lives as given below best represent the
period over which management expects to use these assets.

Class of asset Management estimate of Useful life as per
useful life Schedule EI
Computer 5 Years 3 Years
Office equipment 5 Years 5 Years
Plant and machinery 5 Years 8§ Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years 10 Years
Vehicle 8 Years 8 Years

Lease hold improvements are amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of lease.

1.2.8 Intangible asset

An Intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the Company.
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition on cost. Following
initial recognition intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any
accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets are amortised over a period of five years with zero residual value.

1.2.9 Impairment of Non-Financial assets

The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment. If any
indication of impairment exists, the recoverable amount of such assets is estimated and if the

catrying amount of these assets exceeds their recoverable amoupt,-impairment loss is recognised

in the statement of profit and loss as an expense, for such excess'antount
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1.2.9

1.2.10

Impairment of Non-Financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price and value in use. Value in use is
arrived at by discounting the future cash flows to their present value based on an appropriate
discount factor. When there is indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in
earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have decreased such reversal of impairment
loss is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial lability or equity instrument of another entity.

a.

Financial assets
Classification

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis
of its business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets (other than financial assets at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the
date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Classification and Subsequent measurement

'
1.

Debt instruments earried at amortised cost

* A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions
are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whoseobjective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the EIR, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to

the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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1.2.10 Financial Instrements {Continued)
a. Financial assets (Continuzed)

Interest income is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. Assets recognised at amortised cost include trade
and other receivables, fixed deposits, security deposits, cash and cash equivalents and bank
balances in current account.

ii. Debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOChH

Any debt instrument is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business model whose
objectiveis achieved by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the debt instrument give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Amounts
recorded in OCT are subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss in case of
debt instruments however, in case of equity instruments it will be directly transferred to
reserves, Equity instruments at FVOCT are not subject to an impairment assessment.

iti.  Debtinstruments at fair value through statement of profit and loss (FVTPL)

' Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized
cost or as FVOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

= In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets
amortized cost or FVOCI criteria, as at EVTPL. However, such election is allowed only
if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch”).

= Financial asset that do not meet the SPPI criteria are measured at FVTPL with all
subsequent changes in the fair value recognized in statement of profit and loss.

iv.  Equity investments

= All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to classify the same either
as at FVOCI or FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

= If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as FVOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL There is
norecycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit and loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within
equity.

®  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Perecognrition

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the ﬁnanc:lal asset explre or lt transfers the rlghts to recelve t_he contractual cash flows




Fino Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1.2.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain control of the
financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance
sheet but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets, the transferred assets are not derecognised.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the
asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognised) and the sum
of (i) the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new Hability
assumed) and (ii) any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in OCI is recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial agsets

IndAS 109 replaces the incurred loss model with a forward looking ‘expected credit loss
model” (ECL). This requires considerable judgment over how changes in economic factors
affect ECL’s, which will be determined on a probability-weighted basis.

The Company applies expected credit loss model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a} Loans and debt instruments that are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities,deposits, and bank balance.

b) Other receivables - The application of simplified approach does not require the
Companyto track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. Trade
receivables are tested for impairment on a specific basis after considering the sanctioned
credit limits, security like letters of credit, security deposit collected etc. and
expectations about future cash flows.

b. Financial liabilities
Classification

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost,
except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable and incremental transaction cost.

Subsequent measurement

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost and the carrying amounts
are determined based on EIR method. Interest expense is included as finance costs in the
statement of profit and loss.
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1.2.10 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or foss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

The Company’s financial liabilities includes trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
ete.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. A new liability based on the
modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between carrying amount of
original financial liability and a new financial Hability with modified terms is recognised in
the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the
company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company are
recognised at the proceeds received net of direct issue cost.

Compound instrument

A compound financial instrument which contains both a lability and an equity component is
separated at the issue date. The liability component of a compound financial instrument is
initially recognised at the fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity
conversion option, The equity component is initially recognised at the difference between
the fair value of the compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the
liability component. Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequently.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised m profit or loss (unless it qualifies for
inclusion in the cost of an asset). In case of conversion at maturity, the financial liability is
reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised.
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1.2.10

1.2.1}

1.2.12

Financial Instruments (Continaed)
f. Financial Guarantee Contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised at fair value. Subsequently, the liability is measured
at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind
AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

g. Reclassification

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a
business line or in the period the Company changes its business model for managing
financial assets. Financial liabilities are not reclassified.

Securitization Transactions

The company securitizes its loans through Special Purpose Vehicles (‘SPV*). Loans securitized
to the SPV are analyzed in accordance with Ind AS 109 in order to determine whether the assets
transferred to the vehicle shall be derecognized. Where the company continues to hold
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets, the company shall
continue to recognize the financial assets.

Post securitization, the company continues to service the loans transferred to the SPV. The
company provides credit enhancements in the form of cash collaterals to the SPV.

Fereign currency
Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of Companyat the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
reported at prevailing closing spot rate. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate
when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss.
Foreign currencynon-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost are not
retranslated.
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1.2.13 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with the customers is based on the core principle that an entity
recognizes revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customer in an
amount that reflects the consideration to which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods and services. Revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance obligations by
applying five-step model.

il

ifi.

Interest income on a financial asset at amortised cost is recognised on a time proportion
basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest rate (‘EIR’).
The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets through the expected life of the financial asset or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount of the financial instrument. The internal rate of return
on financial assets after netting off the fees received, and cost incurred approximates the
etfective interest rate method of return for the financial asset. The future cash flows are
estimated taking into account all the contractual terms of the instrument.

The interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
non-credit impaired financial assets (i.e. at the amortised cost of the financial asset
before adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance). For credit-impaired financial
assets the interest income is calculated by applying the EIR to the amortised cost of the
credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. the gross carrying amount less the allowance for
ECLs).

Loan processing fees are amortized over the tenor of the loan.

Revenue from services charges is recognized over the period of time as the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance
as the entity performs.

1.2.14 Employee benefits

i,

fii.

Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A lability is
recognised for the amount expected to be paid within twelve months if the Company has a
present or legal constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service
provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably. These benefits
include salaries and wages, bonus and exgratia.

Defined contribution plans
Provident fund

The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards employee provident fund to
Government administered provident fund scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contribution is recognised as an expense in the statement of profit and loss
during the period in which the employee renders the refated service.

Defined benefit plans

The following post — employment benefit plans are coveg;ad s’
g
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1.2.14 Employee benefits (Continued)
Gratuity Fund

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the
current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan
assets.The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annuaily by a qualified
actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if
any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in QCI Net interest expense /income)
on the net defined liability/ (assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used to
measure the net defined liability/ (asset), to the net defined liability /(asset) at the start of
the financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of contribution and
benefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised
immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement
of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

Compensated absences balance up to 7 days is encashed at the end of financial year on the
basic salary. Encashment of more than 7 days of leave is not permitted. Leave balance over
7 days will lapse at the end of the financial year. The obligation is measured on the basis of
an annual independent actuarial valuation.

Share Based Payments

The grant date fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee
expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the employees
become unconditionally entitled to the options. The expense is recorded on straight line
basis over the period over which the employee would be entitled to apply for the options
(i.c. vesting period). The amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of stock options that vest at the end of each reporting period.

1.2.15 Leases
Company as a lessee

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful ilfpﬁf’ﬁﬁ&ﬁght -of-use asse'
: vimig
® 8

end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-us f}sseis are, Hetennlned oAl
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1.2.15

1.2.16

Leases (Continued)

same basis as those of the underlying assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically
reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease
liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortised cost at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount
rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
- fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments.

- variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as at the commencement date.

- amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and

- the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to
exercise, lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain
to exercise an extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the
Company is reasonably certain not to terminate early.

It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an
index or rate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether
it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option,

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Carrying amount of lease liabilities is increased by interest on lease liability and reduced by
lease payments.

Short-term beases and leases of low-value assets

The company has availed for the exemption as permitted under this standard, not to recognise
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less and leases of low-value assets. The company recognises the lease payments associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement comprise cash in hand at bank
and short-term investments with original maturity of three months or less.
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1.2.17 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current tax (i.e. amount of tax for the period determined in
accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961), deferred tax charge or benefit (reflecting the tax
effect of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Current tax

Current tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance
with the Income Tax Act, 196] in respect of taxable income for the year and any adjustment to
the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the Company’s financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and quantified using the tax rates and laws enacted or
substantively enacted as on the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences and carried forward to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which they can be used.

Transaction or event which is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive
income or in equity, is recorded along with the tax as applicable.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax
laws in India, to the extent it would be available for set off against future current income tax
liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the
asset can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the asset will be realized.

MAT Credit

MAT under the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 is recognized as current tax in the
statement of profit and loss. The credit available under the Income Tax Act, 1961 in respect of
MAT paid is recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT can be
carried forward for set off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as an asset is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing
evidence no longer exists.




Fino Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1.2.18

1.2.19

1.2.260

Provisions and contingent liabilities

The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The
amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a
pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. Provisions
are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the
provision is reversed.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation arising from
past events the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present
obligation that may arise from past events but probably not require an outflow of resources to
settle the obligation, When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of
which the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision disclosure is made.

Contingent assetsarenot recognized but disclosed in the financial statements where an inflow of
economic benefit is probable.

Earnings per share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to the
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
period. For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the period
attributable to the equity shareholders and the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Borrowing cost

Expense related to borrowing cost are accounted using effective interest rate. Borrowing costs
are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency
borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in
connection with the borrowings of funds. Borrowing costs are directly attributable to acquisition
or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use are capitalized as a part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
recognized as an expense in the period which they are incurred.




Fino Finance Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

1.2.21 Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing
standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On
March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method,
the identifiable assets acquired and Hlabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at
the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
statements.

Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in
profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition
of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 ~ Onerous Contracts ~ Costs of Fulfilling 2 Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial
stafements.

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the *10 percent’ test of Ind
AS 109 in assessing whether to de recognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the iHlustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company does
not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements,




Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly known as intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Balance Sheet as at 3¢ March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Notes As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
L ASSETS
(1) Financial assets
{a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 2,770.29 542,90
(b} Bank balances other than {(a} above 3 1,402.92 2.979.04
{c¢) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 4 169.94 398.74
(d) Loans 5 608.95 10,455.83
(e) Other financial assets 6 13.71 46.00
Total financial assets 4,965.81 14,422.55
(2) Non-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) 226.77 463.75
(b) Deferred tax assets (Net) - -
(¢) Property, plant and equipment 7 51.48 112.79
(d) Right-of-use asset 22 1.59 43.63
(e) Other intangible assets 8 0.04 14,46
() Other non-financial assets 9 270.17 333.82
Total non-financial assets 550.05 968.45
TOTAL ASSETS 5,515.86 15,390.96
As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
IL LIABHITIES AND EOUITY
(1) Financial liabilitics
(a) Payables
(#) Trade payables 1
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises -
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 79.56 191.56
{b) Debt securities 11 - 3,002.09
(¢) Borrawings (ofher than debt securities) 12 2,039.39 4,812.62
{d) Subordinated liabilities i3 1,991.03 4,506.59
(e} Other financiat liabilities 14 0.13 0.38
() Lease habilities 15 2.35 54.93
Total financial liabilities 4,112.46 12,568.17
(2) Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax Habilities 81.92 81.92
{b) Provisions 16 199.69 222.50
{c) Other non-financial liabilities 17 66,55 105.51
Total nen-financia) liabilities 348.16 409.93
(3) Equity
(a) Equity share capital 18 4,157.68 1,107.68
{b) Other equity 19 (3,102.44) 1,305.18
Total equity 1,055.24 2.412.86
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,515.86 15,396.96

For Tibrewal Chand & Co For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Fino Finance Private Limited
Firm's Registration Number: 31 1047E (Formerly known as Intrepid Finance and Leasing

Private Limited)

A B o "
W — ER
Vishal Rathi Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Partner Independent Director Whaole-time Director
Membership No: 126244 DIN 00812946 DIN 07899859
Mumbai

28 May 2022



Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerty known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Notes For the Year ended 31 For the year ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Revenue from Operations
() Interest income 20 767.63 3,530.76
(i) Fees and commission income 21 690.02 1,456,777
(iif) Sale of services 22 - -
L Totaf Revenue from operations 1.457.65 498753
I1. Other income 23 2.7% 143.69
I11. Total Income (I+I1) 1,460.44 5,131.22
Expenses
{1) Finance costs 24 1,084.45 2,575.74
(i} Impairment on financial instraments 25 5,825.54 441691
(iii) Employee benefit expenses 26 1,311.51 2,298.89
(iv) Depreciation and amortization expenses 104.48 496.87
(v} Other expenses 27 573.26 815.43
Total Expenses (IV) §,899.24 10,603.84
V. Profit/(foss) before Exceptionad Items and Tax (EII-TV) {7,438.80) (5,472.62)
V1. Exceptional items - -
V11 Profit/(loss) before Tax (V-V} (7,438.80) (5,472.62)
VIl Tax expense:
1. Current tax - -
2. Deferred tax - -
3. MAT credit entitlement - -
IX. Profit/(Loss) for the year {7,438.80) {3.472.62)
X. Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Hems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 18.74 (8.54)
Income tax related to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss - -
18.74 (8.54)
(i) Ttems that wilk be reclassified to profit or loss
1tems that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Income tax related to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) 18.74 (8.54)
XL Total comprehensive income for the year (JX + X} (7.420.06) (5,481.16)
XIL Earnings per equity share
1. Basic earnings per share 40 (30.41) (49.41)
2. Diluted earnings per share 40 (30.41) (49.41)

Nominal value per share Rs. 10 each

For Tibrewal Chand & Co

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration Number: 311047E

et B
Vishal Rathi

Partner
Membership No: 126244

Maumbai
28 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance and Leasing
Private Lintited)

L

—
W / N A\
el .\/M/'

Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Independent Director Whole-time Director
DIN 00812946 DIN 07899839




Fino Finance Private Limited
{Formeriy known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year ended 31  For the year ended 31

March 2022 March 2021
A, Cash flows from operafing activities
(Loss) / Profit before tax from continuing operations (7,438.80) (5,472.62)
(Loss) / Profit before tax (7,438.80) (5,472.62)
Adjustments to reconcile (loss) / profit before tax to net cash used in operating activities
Depreciation 104.48 496.87
Interest income {134.80) {199.79)
Interest & finance charges 195 33.66
ESOP expenses (1.68} 9.37
Impairment of financial instruments 5.499.67 441691
Operating profit / (loss) before working capitat changes (1,969.18) (715.60)
Working capital adjustments:
Other non-financial assets 063.65 (273.62)
Other financial assets 35.48 105.05
Financial assets - loans 3,500.47 9,160.92
Trade receivables 1,131.50 1,012,537
Trade payables (112,06} (186.67)
Proceeds / { repayment) of debt securities (3,002.09) 339
Proceeds / ( repavinent) of borrowings (other than debt securities) {2,773.22) (11,260,93)
Proceeds / ( repayment) of subordinated liabilities (2,515.56) (88.47)
Other financial liabilities (0.25) (0.17)
Provisions (4.06) (4.13)
Other non-financial liabilities (38.96) 36,04
Right-of-use asset (39.53) (270.040)
Cash generated from / (used) in operations (5,723.7%) (2,481.62)
Income tax paid 236,99 17101
Net cash fiows from operating activities (5,486.76) {2,310.61)
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 0.24 0.07
Proceeds from property, plant and eguipment - -
Proceeds from fixed deposits 1,516.94 21840
Interest received 134.80 199.79
Net cash flows from investing activities 1,651.98 41826
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Interest & finance charges paid {1.95) (33.66)
Proceeds from issue of shares 6,160.00 -
Share issue expenses (35.88) -
Net cash flows from finapcing activities 6,062.17 {33.60)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,227.39 {1,926.01)
Cash and cash equivalents (opening bafance) 542.90 2.468 91
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yvear 2,7760.29 542.90
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and balances with banks 2,770.29 542.90
Cash and cash equivalents 2,770.29 542.90

For Tibrewal Chand & Co
Chartered Accountanis

Firm's Registration Nurnber: 311047E

B

Vishal Rathi
Parmer
Membership No: 126244

Mumbai
28 May 2022

G
oo

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Fino Finance Private Limited

(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance and Leasing Private
Limited)

Ashol Kini uzlneep'Gupta
Independent Director Whole-time Director
DIN 00812946 DIN 07899859
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Hino Finance Private Limited

{Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the firancial statements (continued)

as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Laldhs)

Particalars

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Note 2
Cash and cash equivalents

Balance with banks :
-In current account

Cash on hand

Less: Loss allowance

Note 3
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent

Deposits with Banks*
Other fixed deposits
Less: Loss allowance

2,761.69 317.41
9.13 225.55
(0.53) {0.06)
2,770.29 542.90
1,403.14 2,979.62
(0.22) {0.58)
1,402.92 2,979.04

* Represents deposits of Rs. 531.03 lakhs (31 March 2021 : Rs. 954.24 lakhs) provided as cash coilateraf against borrowings and
represents deposits of Rs. 859,04 lakhs (31 March 2021 : Rs.1,457.22 lakhs) provided as cash collateral against business correspondent

agreemert

Note 4
Trade and other receivables
TFrade receivables

Unsecured considered good
- Considered Doubtful
Less: Loss allowance

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good

Less than 6 months

6 months - I year

1-2 years

2-3 years

More than 3 years

Less: Provision for doubtful receivables

169:94 398_.74
169i94 398?74
117.90 398.74
52:94 :

169:94 398;74

169.94 398.74




Fino Finance Private Limited

(Formerly known as Intrepid Firance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  As at 31 March 2021

Note 5
Financial assets - loans (At amortised cost)

Loans to joint liability groups 2,873.33 13,952.29
Loans to joint liability groups - securitised - -
Less: Loss allowance on joint liability groups {2,537.29) (4.428.40)
336.04 9,523.89
Loans to MSME (Secured, considered good) 626.44 1,020.07

Loans to MSME (Secured, considered doubtful) - -
Loans to MSME (Unsecured, considered good) - -
Less: Loss allowance on MSME (333.53) {88.13)

27291 931.94
608,95 10,455.83
Out of the above

(I} Seceered 626.44 1,620.07
Less: Loss allowance (284.73) (71.25)

Total {I) 341.71 948.82

(It) Unsecured 2,873.33 13,952.29
Less: Loss allowance (2,606.09) (4,445.28)

Total (IT) 267.24 9,507.01

Total (I+Li) 608.95 10,455.83

Out of the above

Loans in India 3,499.77 14,972.36
Others - -
Less: Loss allowance (2,890.82) (4,516.53)

608.95 10,455.83
Note 6

Other financial assets

Security deposits 18.92 43.51
Less: Loss allowance on security deposits (7.72} {10.91)
£1.20 32.60

Death claim receivable - unsecured, considered good 2.51 176.24
Less: Provision for doubtful death ¢laim receivable - (162.84)

1.31 13.40

13.71 46.00
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Fine Finance Private Limited

(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Eeasing Private Limited)
Notes to the finanecial statements (continued)

as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Endian Rupees in Lakhs)

Note - § Other intangible assets

PARTICULARS Computer software Total
As at 31 Mareh 2022
Gross block
Opening gross block as at 01 Aprii 2021 48.08 48.08
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Closing gross block As at 31 March 2022 48.08 48.08
Accumulated amortisation
Opening accumulated depreciation as at 01 April 2021 33.62 33.62
Amortisation charge during the year 14.42 14.42
Disposals - -
Closing acenmulated depreciation As at 31 Maych 2022 48.04 48.64
Net Block As at 31 March 2022 0.04 .04

As at 31 March 2021

Gross block

Opening gross block as at 01 April 2020 48.08 48.08
Additions . -
Disposals - -
Closing gross block As at 31 March 2021 48.08 48.08
Accomulated amortisation

Opening accumulated depreciation as at 01 April 2020 19.20 19.20
Amortisation charge during the year 14.42 14.42
Disposals - .
Closing accumulated depreciation As at 31 March 2021 33.62 33.62

Net block As at 31 March 2021 i4.46 14.46




Fino Finance Private Limited

{Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

as at 31 March 2022

{Currency: Indian Rapees in Lakhs)

Particulars As at 31 March 2022  Asat 31 March 2021

Note ¢
Other nor-financial assets

Prepaid expenses 14.45 3175
Advances to employees 0.20 173
Other assets 255.52 300.34

270.17 333.82

Note 10
Trade payables

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises - -
Others 79.56 191.56

79.56 191.56

(Outstanding from due date of payment / from date of transaction)

(i) MSMF.

Less than 1 year - -
i-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -

(ii} Others

Less than 1 year 78.44 191.22

1-2 years .32 0.34

2-3 years - -

More than 3 vears - -
79.56 191.56

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME

Less than | year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - .
More than 3 vears - -

(iv) Disputed dues — Others

Less than 1 year - -
1-2 years - -
2-3 years - -
More than 3 years - -

79.56 191.56

Note 11
Debt securities (At amortised cost)

Privately placed redeemable non convertible debentures - 3,002.09

- 3,002.09

Qut of the above

Debt securities in India - 3,002.09

- 3,002.09




Fine Finance Private Limited

(Formerly knows as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Particalars

As at 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021

Note 12
Borrowings (At amortised cost)
Secured

{A) Term loans

(i) from Banks 35.69 3,083.94
(ii} from other parties - 1.011.07
{#3) Loans repayable on demand
(1) from Banks
Cash credit* 2,003.70 717.61
Overdralt - -
(1) from other parties - -
2,039.3% 4812.62
Gut of the above
Borrowings in India 2,039.39 481262
Borrowings outside hidia - -
2,039.39 481262

Secured Loans:

a. Term loans from banks are talcen at an interest rate at 9.15% p.a. and are repayable in monthly / quarterly instaliments ranging from
24 to 39 months. Term loans are secured by way of exclusive charge created through hypothecation of the specific loans for security
cover, ranging from 1.1 to 1.15 times of the outstanding Joans, and In case of certain loans also through corporate guarantee of Holding

Company viz. Fino PayTech Limited and cash collaterals.

* Cash credit facility from bank is taken at an interest rate of 10.05% p.a. and the same is secured against 1.1 times of the outstanding

loans, corporate guarantee of Holding Compainy viz. Fino PayTech Limited and cash collaterals.

Note 13

Suboerdinated liabilities (Al amortised cost)

Subordinated debt (Non-convertible debenture) 1,991.03 4,506.59
1,991.03 4,506.5%

Out of the Above

Subordinated debt in India 1,991.03 4.506.59
1,991.03 4.506.59

Unsecured foans:

Subsequent subordinated debt of Rs. 2,000 lakhs is issued at an interest rate of 14, 50% p.a. and is repayable on 01 October 2025 ina

single bullet payment with interest payable monthly and is unsecured.

Note 14
Other finaacial liabilities
Collections payable on loan secuntised 0.13 0.38
013 0.38
Ngte 15
Lease liahilities
Lease liabilities 2.35 54.93
2.35 5493
Note 16
Provisions
Provision for emplovee benefits
Gratuity [Refer note 32 §7.71 10915
Bonus payable 18.00 5046
Compensated absences [Refer note 32} 6.40 14.36
92.11 17397
Other provision :
Pravision for expected loss on first loss default guarantee 107.58 485
107.58 48.53
199.69 322,50
Note 17

Other non-financial lEabilities
Statutory dues payable (Includes VAT, Excise Duty, Provident Fund, Withholding
Taxes, etc.)

Other liabilities

9.4
5715

60,55
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(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

as at 31 Maech 2022

(Currency: [ndian Rupees in Lalhs)

Particulars Asgat 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Note 18
Share capital

Authorised :
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

53,500,000 (31 March 2021: 16,000,000 Equity shares 4,350.00 1,600.0¢
5,350.00 1.600.00

Issued and subscribed and paid up:
41,576,807 (31 March 2021 : 11,076.807) Equity shares fully paid up 4,157.68 1,107.68
4,157.68 1,107.68

Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year :
Equity share :

Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 11,076,807 11,076,807
Equity shares issued during the vear in consideration for cash 30,500,000 -
Qutstanding at the end of the year 41,576,807 11,076,807

Terms / rights attached to each classes of shares

1. Rights attached to Equity shares

Equity Shares : The Company has only one class of equity shares having a face value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share. In the evenl of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitied to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, The distributior: will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the sharcholders
in the ensuing Annual General Meeting. During the current year, the company has not declared any dividend (31 March 2021:Nil).

Shares in respect of each class in the company held by its holding company

Equity share As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
: No. of Shares Amount No. of Shares Amount
Equity shares held by FINO PayTech Limited 41,576,807 4,157.68 11,076,806 1,107.68
Sharehoiders helding more than 5% shares in the company is set out below:
Equity share As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
No. of Shares | No of shares % No. of Shares No of shares %
FINO PayTech Limited 41,576,807 106% 11,076,806 100%

Aggregate number of boius shares issued, shares issued for consideration other than cash and shares bought back during the period of 5 years immediately
preceding the reporting date: Nil (31 March 2021 ; Nil)




Fino Finance Private Limited
(Formerly knewn as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {continued)

as at 31 March 2622

(Currency: Indizn Rupees in Lakhs)

As at 31 March 2022

As at 31 March 2021

Particulars
Note 19
Other equity
Securities premivm reserve 14,504.47 11,490.35
Statutory reserve (as per RBI Act) 175.87 175.87
Retained earnings (18,012.12) (10,592.06)
Deemed equity 229.34 231.02
(3,102.44) 1,305.18
Securities premium reserve
As per last balance sheet 11,490.35 11,490.35
Additions during the year 3,050.00 -
Share issue expenses (35.88) -
Closing balance 14,504.47 11,49¢.35
Statutory reserve (as per RBI Act}
As per last balance sheet 175.87 175.87
Appropriations for the year - -
Closing balance 175.87 175.87
Retained earnings
As per last balance sheet (10,592.06) {_5,1 10.96)
Net (loss) for the vear (7,438.80) {5.472.62)
Transfer to statutory reserve (as per RBI Act) - -
Remeasurements to net defined benefit plans 18.74 (8.54)
Closing balance {18,012.12) (10,592.06)
Deemed equity
As per last balance sheet 231.02 221.65
Additions during the year (1.68} 9.37
Closing balance 229.34 231.02
(3,102.44) 1,3035.18




Fino Finance Private Limited

{Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the Financial statements {continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

For the Year ended  For the year ended 31

Particulars
i 31 March 2022 March 2021
Mote 20
Interest income {On financial assets measured at amortised cost)
Interest income on portfolio loans 621.49 33817
Interest on fixed deposits® 134.80 19979
Cther interest 11.34 i2.80
767.63 3.530.76

*Represents inlerest on fixed deposils placed as cash collateral to avail term loans from banks, non-banking financial companies and on
deposits placed as cash collateral in connection with BC Business.

Nate 21
Fees and commissien income
Loan processing fees 13.83 132.86
Service charges 474.19 1,323.91
69{.02 1.456.77
Note 22

Sale of services

(Gain on loans securitised - -
Excess interest spread on direct assignment - -

Note 23
Cher incomie

Gain on disposal of right-of-use assels .79 63.07
Rent concessions - 80.62
2.79 143 69

Mote 24

Finance costs (On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost)

[nterest on borrowings 1.050.94 2,483.87

fnterest on debentures - -

Unwinding of tease liabilities 1.95 33.06

Other finance costs 31.56 3821
1,084.45 2,575, 74

Note 25

Impairment on financial instruments (At amortised cost)

Loans 6,672.29 5,632.17

First loss default guarantee 59.06 6.60

Others (505.81) (1,221.86)
5,823.54 1416 91

Noie 26

Employee benefit expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other funds

Staft weltare expenses
ESOP expense

Note 27
Other expenses

Repairs and maintenance:
- Buildings
- Others
Rent
Rates and axes
Insurance
Electricity charges
Conimuriication cost
Bank charges
Travelling and conveyance
Legal and professional charges
[nfrastructure cost
Stationery & printing expenses
Directors sitting fees
Payment 10 auditors
- Statutory audit
- Reimbursement of expenges

Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

1,177.8% 2,101.59
134.18 187.81
1.12 0.11
(1.68) 9.38
131151 2,208 89
48.13 71.28
182.42 2571
0.12 0.23
51.50 91.97
18.51 21.59
42.56 57.74
2.20 2.38
10.96 12,32
112.56 [02.41
37.03 71.53
11.54 14.20
18,75 1075
1L16
0.73
30,09

373.26




Fino Finance Private Limited
(Fermerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)

Wotes to the financial statements (centinued)
as at 31 March 2022

{(Carrency: Indian Rupees in Lalhs)

Note 28

1. Financial instraments — Fair values and risk management

A. Aecounting classification and fair values

Carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hicrarcity, are presented below. It does not
include the fajr value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of
fair value.

Carrying amount Fair value

31 March 2022 Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 2,770.29 2,770.2% - - 2,770.29 2,770,129
Other bank balances 1,402.92 1,402.92 - - 1,409.19 1,409,19
Trade receivables 169.94 169.94 - - 169,94 169.94
Loans
Loans - JLG group 33060.04 336.04 - - 336.04 336.04
Loans to MSME 272.91 272.91 - - 250.45 256.45
Other financial assets
Death claim receivable 2.51 2.5 - - 2.51 1.51
Security deposits 11.2¢ 11.2¢ - - 11.20 11.2¢
Others - - - - - -
4,965.81 4,965.81 - - 4,949.62 4,949.62
Financial liabilities
Trade and other pavables 79.56 79.56 - - 79.56 76.56
Borrowings 2,039.39 2,039.39 - - 2,039.39 2,039.39
Subordinated debts 1,991.03 1,991.03 - - 2,000.00 2,060.00
Other financial liabilitics
Lease liabilities 2.35 235 - - 2,33 2.38
Others 13 0.13 - - 013 0.13
4,112.46 4,112.46 - - 4,121.43 4,121.43
Carrying amount Fair value
31 March 2021 Amotised Cost Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 542.90 542.90 - - 542.90 542.90
Other bank balances 2,979.04 2,979.04 - - 2,952.69 2,952.69
Trade receivables 398.74 398.74 - - 398.74 398.74
Loans -
Loans - JL.G group 9,523.89 9,523.89 - - 9,359.38 8,359.38
Loans to MSME 931.94 331.94 - - 927.73 32773
Other financial assets
Death claim receivable 13.40 13.40 - - [3.40 13.40
Security deposits 32.60 32.60 - - 33.84 33.84
Others - - - - - -
14,422.51 14,422.51 - - 14,228.68 14,228.68
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 191.56 191.56 - - 161.56 191.56
Debt Securities 3.002.09 3,002.09 - - 2,829.73 2,829.73
Borrowings 4.812.62 4,812.62 - - 3.948.12 3.948.12
Subordinated debts 4.506.59 4,506.59 - - 3,604.17 3.604.17
Other financial liabilities
Lease liabilities 5493 54.93 - - 54.93 54.93
Others 0.38 0.38 - - 0.38 0.38
12,568.17 12.568.17 - - 10,628.89 10.628.89

(1) Assets that are not finencial assets (such as unamortised guarnatee cost, prepaid guamatee co

included.

(2) Other liabilities that are not financial liabilities (such as statutory dues payable and ceﬂainj‘
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Note 28 {continued)
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk managensent (continued)

B. Measurement of fair values

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inpufs

a. Falr value of cash and bank balances, prepaid guarantee commission, other short term receivables, trade payables, other current liabilities, approximate their
carrying amounts largely due to short term maturities of these instruments.

b. The following tables show the valuation teclmiques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values, as well as the significant uncbservable inputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type Yaluation technigue

Fixed rates long term borrowings The valuation model considers present
value of expected payments discounted
using an appropriate discounting rate.

Security Deposits The valuation model considers present
value of expected payments discounted
using an appropriate discounting rate,

Loans to joint liability groups The valuation model considers preseat
value of expected payments discounted
using an appropriate discounfing rate.

C. Financial riskk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:
» Credit risk ;

= Liquidity risk ; and

= Market risk

i. Risk management framework

The Company’s Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the

Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive conirol
environment i which all employees understand their roles and obligations.




Fino Finance Private Limited

(Formerly kunown as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
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Note 28 (continued)
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

il. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and
arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and loans and advances.

The maximum exposure to the credit risk at the reporting date is primarily from loans to Joint Liability Groups (JLG), loans to Micro, Smali and Mediuem
Enterprises (MSME) and other loans and advances (such as Mobile Loans, security deposits, FLDG placed for borrowings and securitisation, death ctaim
receivable etc.) as mentioned below. Both trade receivables and other loans and advances are unsecured,

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuousty monitoring the eredirworthiness of customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the notmai
course of business. The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analysed individually for creditworthiness before the
Company offers any loan.

a. Collaterals held and concentiations of credit risk
The company doss not hold any colfaterals against any of its credit exposures except for loans to MSME Borrowers.

In case of loans to MSMESs, cotlateral is generally comprised of mortgage of residential house property of the MSME borrowers to cover any shortfall in
outstanding loan principal and acciued interest. Such mortgage of residential house property provides a secondary source of repayment of funds advanced in
the event that & customer cannot meet their contractual repayment obfigations. The Loan to Value (LTV) of such loans is generally in the range of 35% to
40%.

The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with after considering factors such as the geographical spread of its operations, the limit on lending to a
single borrower and the past history of borrowers. The risk of concentration to eredit risk is not considered to be significant with respect to loans made ta the
Joint Liability Group comprising women living in rural areas of India. The Company’s operations are spread out across 6 states in India with no concentration
in any singie area within a particular state,

b. Amounts arising frem ECL

i Inputs, assumpfions and techniques used for estimating impairment of receivables

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 115,
the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal (o lifetime expected eredif losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as permitted
under [nd AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and
adjusted for forward-locking information.

ii. Inputs, assumptions and technigues nused for estimating impairment on JLG loans
Inputs considered in the ECL modek:

When determining whether the risk of default on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Compauy considers reasonable
and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis based on the Company’s historical experience, expert credit assessment and including forward looking information.

In assessing the impairment of loan assests under Expected Credit Loss (ECL) Model, the loans have been segmented into three stages based on the risk
profiles, The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial Instrument.

The company categorises loan assets into stages based on the days past due status,
- Stage 1: 0-30 days past due

- Stage 2: 31- 90 days past due

- Stage 3; More than 90 days past due

Assumption cousidered in the ECL model:

- "Toss given default” (LGD) is an estimate of loss from a transaction given that a default oceurs.

- "Probability of default” (PD) is defined as the probability of whether the borrowers will default on their obligations in the future. For assets which are in
Stage 1, a 12 month PD is required. For Stage 2 assets a lifetime PD is required while Stage 3 assets are considered to have a 100% PD.

- "Exposure at defanlt” (EAD) represents the expected exposure in the event of a default and is the gross carrying amount in case of the financial assets held

by the Company.
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Note 28 (continued)
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

Estimation technigues:
The Lending business has applied the foilowing estimation technigue for ECL model:
- The probability of default is computed using a "rell rate” method based on the probability of receivable progressing through successive stages based on past
portfolio
- Loss given default is calculated after considering regulatory LGD as a starting point and adjusting for past recoveries.
~ For FLDGs placed for BC Lending business, the ECL shall be calculated as lower of :
1. ECL on the underlying loan portfolio
2. Amount of FLDGs provided

Forward looking information:

The Company incorporates forward looking information into both assessment of whether the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its
initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. Based on the consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Company forms a
*base case’ view of the future direction of relevant economic variables such as real GDP, private consumption, domestic demand and money supply . This
process involves devefoping two or more additional ecoromic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of each outcome. The base case represents a
most likely outcome white the other scenarios represent more optimistic and more pessimistic outcomes.

Assessment of sigrificant increase in credit risk:
The credit risk on a financial asset of the Company are assumed to have increased significantly since initial recognition when coniractual payments are more
than 30 days past due. Accordingly the financial assets shall be classified as Stage 2, if on the reporting date, it has been 30 days past due,

Definition of default

A default on a finanecial asset is when the counterparty fails o make the contractual payments within 90 days of when they fall due. This definition of default
is determined by considering the business environment in which the company operates and other micro-economic factms Accordingly the financial assets
shall be classified as Stage 3, if on the reporting date, it has been 90 days past due.

iti, Ageing analysis
The following tables show the ageing of loans & receivables:

Trade receivables 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Less than 180 days 169.94 398.74
More than 180 days -

398.74

Closing balance 169.94

JLG loans 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Stage 1 253,77 5,301.98
Stage 2 164.91 4,153.84
Stage 3 1.454.65 4.496 .47
Closing balance 2,873.33 13,952.29

MSME leans 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Stage 1 239.73 819.09
Stage 2 55.26 75.80
Stage 3 331.45 125.18
Closing balance 626.44 1,02007
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Note 28 (contineed)

Financial instraments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iv. Loss allowance

The following table shows reconciliations from the opening to the closing balance of the loss allowances and write offs:

Lifetime ECL not credit-

Lifetime ECL

12-month ECL \ . P . Total
impaired credit-impaired

Baiance as at 01 April 2020 303.42 640.89 245,46 1,189.77
Transfer to 12 month ECL 0.79 (0.7%) - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (47.53) 47.53 - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (48.01) (25.00) 73.01 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (167.49) 1,524.39 2,962.39 4,319.29
New financial assets originated or purchased - - - -
Financial assets that have been derecognied - (812.28) (268.38) {1,080.66)
Balance as at 31 March 2021 41.18 1,374.74 301248 4.428.40
Transfer to 12 month ECL 0.95 (0.61) (0.34) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired 2.07) (0.15) 222 -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (6.46) (109.38) £15.84 B
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 3.12 20.86 - 23.98
New financial assets originated or purchased 29,96 2,252.17 2,049.35 4,401.48
Financial assets that have been derecognied (125.06) (3,466.6%) (2,724.81) (6,316.57)
Balance as at 31 March 2622 11.62 70.94 2,454.73 1,837.29

12-month FCL Lifetimt-a ECI.I not credit- Lif('eti'mc E.CL Total

impaired credit-impaired

Loans fo MSME
Balance as at 01 April 2020 8.72 47.66 44.50 100.88
Transfer fo 12 month ECL 2.21 (2.21) - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (0.53) 0.53 - -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL credit impaired (1.00) {5.31) 6.31 -
Net remeasurement of logs allowance (5.12) (26.58) 18.95 (12.75}
Balance as at 31 March 2021 4.28 14.09 69.76 88.13
Transfer to 12 month ECL 2.65 (0.14) (2.51) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL not credit impaired (0.13Y 2.93 (2.80) -
Transfer to Lifetime ECL eredit impaired (0.41) (2.53) 2.94 -
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 1.03 2.95 - 3.98
New financial assets originated or purchased (0.55) (2.10) 264.07 261.42
Balance as at 31 March 2022 6.87 15,20 331.46 353.53

Trade Receivables

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance
Net Impairment loss recognised
Balance written back

Closing balance

FLDGs placed for BC lending

31 March 2022

31 Mareh 2021

Opening balance 48.53 41.93
Net Impairment loss recognised 59.05 6.60
Balance written back " -

Closing balance 107.58 48.53

Other advances

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Opening balance 173,75 165.91
Net Impairment loss recognised (166.03) 7.84
Balance written: back - -

Closing balance 7.72 173.75

12 month ECL' and ‘lifetime ECL not impaired' are collectively assessed. Lifetime ECL credit impaired’ are individually assessed. Loans which are written

off continue to be subject to enforcement activity.

Significant chianges in gross carrying value that contributed to change in foss allowance:
The lending business mostly provides joans to joint liability groups in

contributed to the change in loss allowance,

rural areas which have siF
I
i
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Note 28 (continued)
Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

iil, Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by

delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is, that it wilt have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are doe, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company’s reputation.

Maturity profile of financial liabilitics

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and include
estimated interest payments,

Contractual eash flows

31 March 2022 Carrying Total Less than 6 612 months  1-2 years 2.5 years More than 3
amount months years
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Rupee term loans from banks 35.69 35.69 35.69 - - - -
Subordinated debt 1,991.03 3,040.82 146.19 143.81 290.79 2,460.03 -
Working capital loans from banks 2,003.70 2,003.70 2,003.7¢ - - - -
Trade and other payables 79.56 79.56 79.56 - - - -
Lease liabilities 2.35 2.44 2.44 - - - -
Other financial fabilities 0.13 ¢.13 0.13 - - - -
Contractual cash flows
31 March 2021 Carrying Total Less than 6 6-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 3
amount monghs years
Non-derivative financial liabitities
Rupee term loans from bauks 3,083.94 3,207.04 2,412.51 380.72 413.81 - -
Rupee term loans from others 1,011.07 1,116.54 539.70 316.95 259.89 - -
Redeemable non convertible debentures 3,002,069 3,624.36 223,10 199.90 3,201.36 - -
Subordinated debt 4,500.59 2,726.43 124.98 2,601.45 - - -
Working capital loans from banks 717,61 717.61 717.61 - - - -
Trade and other payables 191.56 191.56 191.56 - - - -
Lease liabilities 54.93 57.40 41.95 11,77 3.68
Other financial liabilities 0.38 0.38 0.38 - - - -

iv. Market risl
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices — such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equify prices ~ will affect the Company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. Market risk is attributable to all marlet risk sensitive financial instruments including foreign currency receivables

and payables and long term debt.
The Company has its revenues and other transactions in its functional currency i.e. INR. Accordingly the Company is not expesed to any currency risk.
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MNote 28 (continued)

Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
v. Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate bacause of changes in market
interest rates. The Company's exposure 1o the risk of changes in market interest rates primarily to the Company's borrowings with floating
interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk

Company’s interest rate risk arises from borrowings. The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as
reported to the management of the Company is as follows.

As af 31 March 2022 Asat 31 March 2021

Borerowings

Fixed rate borrowings 4,030.42 £0,486.99
Variable rate borrowings - 1,834 .31
Total 4,030.42 12,321.30

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit or loss by the
amounts shown below.

Profit or (foss) Equity

100 by increase 100 bp decrease 100 bp increase 140 bp decrease
31 March 2022
Variable-rate instruments - - - -
Cash flow sensitivity (net) - - - -
31 March 202}
Variable-rate instruments (18.34) 18.34 {i18.34) £8.34
Cash flow sensitivity (net) {18.34) 18,34 (18.34) 18.34

The risk estimates provided assume a patallel shift of 100 basis poinis interest rate across all yield eurves. The sensitivity has been
calculated assuming the borrowings outstanding at the reporting date have been outstanding for the entira reporting period.
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Note 29 : Leases

Right-of-use (ROT]) asset

Particulars Building Total
Gross block
Opening balance as on 01 April 2020 1,176.37 1,176.37
Additions " R
Deletions 848.81 848.81
Closing balance as on 31 March 2021 327.56 327.56
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance as on 01 April 2020 800.84 800.84
Depreciation for the period 16141 161.41
Depreciation on deletions 678.32 678.32
Closing balance as on 31 March 2021 283.93 283.93
Net block as at 01 April 2020 375.53 375.53
Net block as at 3§ March 2021 43.63 43.63
Gross block
Opening balance as on 01 April 2021 327.56 327.56
Additions - -
Deletions 286.72 286.72
Closing balance as on 31 March 2022 40.84 40.84
Accumulated depreciation
Opening balance as on 01 April 2021 283.93 183.93
Depreciation for the period 29.00 2%.00
Depreciation on deletions 273.68 273.68
Closing balance as or 31 March 2022 39.25 39.25
Net block as at 31 March 2021 43.63 43.63
Net block as at 31 March 2022 1.59 1.59
I, , As at 31 March As at 31 March
Lease Jiabilities included in the balance sheet 2022 2021
Current 2.35 51.39
Noen-current - 3,54
2.35 54.93

For the Year ended

For the year ended

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss 31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Interest on lease liabitities 1.95 33.60
Expenses relating to short-term leases 182.42 257.11
Total 184.37 290,77

Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows

For the Year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Total cash outflow for leases for long term leases

159.98
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Note 30
Capital management

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to (a) maximise shareholders value and provide benefit to the stakeholders and {b) maintain

an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Compauy menitors capital using a ratio of "adjusted net debt” to “"adjusted equity”. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total
liabilities,comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Equity comprises ali components of equity.

The business of the company is subject to the capital adequacy requirements to the Reserve Bauk of India (RBI). Under RBI's capital adequacy
guidelines, the company is required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio consisiting of Tier I and Tier If Capital. The total of Tier II Capital at any

peint of time, shall not exceed 100 percent of Tier I Capital.

As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021

Borrowings 4,030.42 12,321.30
Gross Debt 4,030.42 12,321.30
Less - Cash and cash equivalents 2,770.2%) (542.90)
Less - Other bank deposits (1,402.92) (2,979.04)
Adjusted net debt (142.79) 8,799.36
Total equity 1,055.24 2,412.86
Adjusted net debt to equity ratio (0.14) 3.65
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Note 31
Share-based payment arrangements:

A. Description of share-based payment arrangements
i. Share option programmnes (equity-settled)

The Fino PayTech Lumited (holding company”) has only one Employee Stock Option Plan ESOP 11 2067 (*Plan’) in force for a total grant of 2,34,63,600
options across the various schemes under the said Flan. The Plan provides that the groups’s employees are granted an option to acquire equity shares of the
holding company that vests in a graded manner. During the current year an amendment has been made to the employee stock option scheme with reference
o exercise of vested option by Option Grantee’s noaunee or legal heirs in case of death of option holder in accordance with which, all Vested Options may
be Exercised by the Option Grantee’s nominee or legal heirs immediately after, but in no event later than five vears from the date of Death of the option
holder. This amendment has come into force from 24th May, 2017,

Crant date Exercise Share options Share options
price 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1-Aug-10 30.00 - -
1-Oct-11 75.00 - -
1-Aug-12 80.00 - 5,000
6-Feb-15 £0.00 16,000 32,5060
1-Dec-15 70.64 15,000 45,000
16-Aug-17 100.00 112,500 141,250
1-Aug-18 165.00 105,000 107,500
1-Jul-19 10000 40,000 40,000

The weighted average share price as at the date of exercise of options exercised during the vear during the year ended 31 March 2022 was INR 68.41 (31
March 2021 : INR 51.86}. Since the company is not listed, the share price available during the year is taken as the weighted average share price.

Share options outstanding at the end of the period have the following exercise price. As per the ESOP scheme-II 2007, while in employment the employes
can exercise the vested options tilf the ttme 1t 1s listed in a stock exchange and three vears from the date of vesting. Additionally, in the case of
resignation/termination, all the vested options as on the last working day of the employee shall be exercisable before the expiry of three years from the his/
her last working day. Hence, the contractual life of the options 1s not detenmmable.

B. Measurement of fair valies
i. Equity-settled share-based payment arrangements

The fair value of the employee share options has been measured using the Black-Scholes formula. Service and non-market performance conditions attached
to the arrangements were not taken into account in measuring fair value.

The requirerment that the employee has to save in erder to purchase shares under the share purchase plan has been incorporated mto the famn value at grant
date by applying a discomt to the valuation cbtained. The discount has been determined by estimating the probability that the employee will stop saving

based on historical behavior.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Grant date Nil Nil
Fair value at grant date N.A N.A
Share price at grant date N.A NA
Exercise price N.A NA
Expected volatility (weighted-average) N.A N.A
Expected life (weighted-average) N.A N.A
Espected dividends N.A N.A
Risk-free interest rate (based on government N.A N.A
bonds)

The following table lists the average inputs to the models used for the plans for the year ended 31 March 2022,

Particalars Bescription of the inputs used

Expected volatility (weighted-averags) Espected volatility of the oplion is based on historical volatility of market retwms, during a period equivalent
1o the option life, and adjusted for companys's nature of operations and industry category.

Expected dividends Dividend yield of the options is based on past trends of profitability and management's estimates of future
dividends.

Risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds} Risk-free interest rates are based on the govemmentof india securities yield in effect af the time of the grant.
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Note 31 (continued)

Reconciliation of outstanding share aptions

Activity in the options outstanding under the employee's stock option Scheme as at 31 March 2022

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Particulars Average exercise Number of Average exercise price ; Number of optiens
price per share per options per share per option
option

Options outstanding at the beginning of the vear 95.87 371,250 89.18 568,750
Add: Options granted during the year - - - -
Less: Options exercised during the year 81.25 75,625 76.60 197,500
Less: Options lapsed during the year 100.00 13,125 - -
Options outstanding as at the vear end 99.59 282,500 95.87 371,250
Options exercisable as at the year end 99.04 251,250 93.70 283,125

D. Expenses arising from share based payment transactions
The total expenses arising from share based payment transactions recognised profit or loss as part of employee benefit expenses is INR (1.68)
lakhs {3 March 2021 : INR 9.38 lakhs)

Mote 32
Employee benefits

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined contribution plan in India.
Provident Fund:

The Company msakes specified monthly contributions towards Government administered provident fund schemes. The Company's obligation for
such schemes is limited te the amount of contribution made.

The Company has recognised an amount of INR 92.84 Lakhs (31 March 2021: 157.05 Lakhs) as provident fund contributions in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The Company contributes to the following post-employment defined benefit plans in India.
Gratuity :

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company's ret obligation in respect of a defined beneflt plan is calculated
by estimating the amount of future benefit that empioyees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is
discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

The calculation of the Company's obligation under the plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Compensated absences :
Compensated absences balance upto 7 days are encashed at the end of financial year on the basic salary. Encaslunent of more than 7 days of leave
is not permitted. Leave balance over 7 days will lapse at the end of the financial year.

Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity and compensated absences amounts
recognised in the Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

Gratuity
Note 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Eiability at the end of the year 16 67,71 109.15
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year -
Amount recognised in balance sheet 67.71 199.15
Non-current liability 13.11 91.18
Current Liability 54.60 m7
"/
@
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Note 32 (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Movement in net defined benefit (asset) liability

The following table shows a reconeiliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for net defined benefit (asset) liabitity and its
components:

Gratuity
Defined benefit obligation Fair value of plan assets
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Opening balance 109.15 103.22 - -
Add: Adjustments to opening balance on account
of transfer
Adjusted opening balance 109.15 103.22 - -
Included in profit or loss
Current service cost 12,77 15.52 - -
Interest cost (income) 6.1 311 - -

128.03 123.85 - -
Included in OCI
Remeasurement loss (gain);
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from: - - - -
Demographic assumptions - 20.88 - -
Financial assumptions (1.55) (3.54) - -
Experience adjustments {17.20) (6.80) - -

109.28 132.39 - -
Other
Contributions paid by the employer
Benefits paid (41.57) (23.24) - -
Closing balance 67.71 109.15 - -
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Note 32 (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit obligations

i. Aetuarial assemptiens

The following were the principal actvarial assumptions at the reporting date.

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate 6.10% 5.60%
Salary escalation rate 5.90% 3.90%
Withdrawal rate 22.00% 22.00%
Mortality rate TALM 2012.2014 [ALM 2012-2014
Ultimate Ultimate

ii. Semsitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have

affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

Gratuity

31 March 2022
Increase Decrease
Discount rate (1% movement) (2.91) .16
Future salary growth (1% movement) ‘ 3.13 (2.94)
Withdrawal rate (1% movement} 2.51) 2.58

31 March 202}

Increase

(4.98)
5.36
(7.54)

Decrease

543
(5.01)
9.67

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation: as a result of

reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

Expected contribution

The expected contributions for defined benefit plan for the next financial year amounts to Nil*

*Please note that since the scheme is managed on unfunded basis, the next year contribution is taken as nil.

Expected future benefit payments

Mazrch 31, 2023 15.11
March 31, 2024 12.18
March 31, 2025 11.63
March 31, 2026 9.77
March 31, 2027 8.14

Thereafter 37.58
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Note 33
Transfer of financial assets

The Company transfers financial assets, primarily loans to Joint Liability Groups, that are not derecognised as the Company has continuing
involvement .

Securitisations:
Transfer of financial assets that de not result in derecognition

The Company was party to securitisation transactions involving its Joint Liability Group lean portfolic.

In these transactions, the assets, interests in the assets, or beneficial interest in the cash flows arising from the assets, are transferred to a special
purpose entity, which then issues pass through certificates to third party investors.

In the securitisations in which the Company transfers loans and advances o an unconsolidated securitisation vehicle, it retains the credit risk
principally by way of credit enhancements placed with the SPV's. The Company does not transfer substantially ail of the risks and rewards of

these assets.
Hence, the company continues to recognize the securitised portfolio in its books of accounts.

The following table shows the carrying amount of the securitised assets that have not resulied in derecognition, together with the associated
liabilities -

31 March 2022 Loans to Joint Credit
liability group enhancements

Carrying amount of assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities -

31 March 2021 Loans to Foint
liability group Credit enhancements

Carrying amount of assets
Carrying amount of associated liabilities -
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Note 34

Master netting or similar agreements

"The following tabie presents the recognised financial instruments that are offset, or subject to enfarceable master netting arrangements and other similar
agreements but not offset, as at 31 March 2022,

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Related amounts not offsef in the balance sheet

Particulars Gross Gross amounfs set Net amounts Amounts subject to Financizl Net amount
Amounts off in the balance presented in the master netting instrument
sheet balance sheet arrapgements collateral

31 March 2022
Financial assets

Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents

Total

Financial Habilities
Long tern berrowings

Total

Particulars

Effects of offsetting on the balance sheet

Related amounts not offset in the balance sheet

Gross amounts set
off in the balance
sheet

Gross
Amounts

Amounis subject to | Financial instrument | Net ameunt
master netting collateral
arrgaeeinents

Net amounts
presented in the
balance sheet

31 March 2021

Financial assets

Bank balances other than cash and
cash equivalents

Total

Financial liabilities
Long term borrowings

Total

Note 35

Invelvement with unconselidated structured entities

‘The following table describes the types of structured entities that the Company does not consolidate but in which it holds an interest.

Type of structured entities

Nature and purpose

Interest held by the Company Total Assets

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Securitisation vehicle for loans and
advances

To generate:

- Funding for the Company's
lending activities,

- Credit enhancements placed with the SPV's - -
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Note 36
Related party disclosures

A, Names of related parties

Sr. No. |Particulars

Country of
Inecorporation

ownership interest

Proportion of

1 |Holding company
Fino PayTech Limited

2 Other related parties with whom the Company had

transactions during the year

Fino Payments Bank Limited {Formerly known as Fino Fintech Limited} — Entity
under common control

3 Key management personnel
Ashok Kini -Non-executive Chairman & Independent Director

Dr. Anjana Grewal - Independent Director
Sudeep Gupta ~ Whole-time Director

Ramakrishna Gupta Vesta - Nominee Director of Bharat Petroleum Corporation
Limited (BPCL} - Cessation with effect from 03.03.2022

Praveer Kumar - Chief financial officer - Cessation with effect from 10.12.2022

Jitendra Garg - Company Secretary & Manager-Legal - Cessation with effect from
07.03.2022

India

India

100.00%

B. Transactions with key management personnel

i. Key management personnel compensation

Sr. No.fParticulars

For the Year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Remuneration to key management personnel
L Short-term employee benefits

ii. Post-employment defined benefit

1, Share based payment

7¢.01
4.43

70.61
4.43
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Note 36 (continued)
Related party relationships, transactions and balances

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related parties for the relevant financial year:

, FINQ PayTech ,FI,NO Payments Bank FING Trusteeship
Nature of Transaction o Limited (Formerly known . .. Total
Limited . . .. Services Limited
as Fino Fintech Limited)
Reimbursement of expenses
31 March 2022 60.22 - - 60.22
31 March 2021 105.34 - - 105.34
Infrastructure cost
31 March 2022 - 37.03 - 37.03
31 March 2021 - 71.53 - 71.53
Service charges income
31 March 2022 . 146.04 - 140.04
31 March 2021 - 287.87 - 287.87
Advance given
31 March 2022 245.76 - - 245.76
31 March 202] 26313 - 0.08 263.21
Guarantee commission
31 March 2022 5.13 - - 5.13
31 March 2021 19.79 - - 19.79
Balance outstanding
Trade receivables
31 Mareh 2022 - 113.28 - 113.28
31 March 2021 - 202.36 - 202.36
QOther receivables
31 March 2022 245.76 - 245.76
31 March 2021 263.13 0.08 263.21
Trade payables
31 March 2022 18.84 - - 18.84
31 March 2021 21.33 - - 21.53
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Note 37
Contingent liabilities and commitments

31 Mareh 2022 31 March 2021

Contingent liabilities

(1) Credit enhancements provided by the campany towards asset securitisation in the form of - -
cash coliaterals.
{li) Credit enhancements provided by the Company towards business correspondent

arrangement in the form of cash collaterals 123.11 720.70
123,11 720.70

3% March 2022 31 March 2021

Dues to micro and small suppliers

(8) The amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small suppliers as at the end of the year

Principal - -
Interest - -
(i) The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) . -
(iii) The amounts of the payments made to micro and small suppliers beyond the appointed
day during each accounting year . .
(iv) The ameunt of interest due and payable for the period of del ay in making payment

(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding
the interest specified under MSMED Act, 2006 . .

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid af the end of each accounting year

(vi) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable ever in the succeeding years,
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for
the purpose of disallowanee as a deductible expenditure under the MSMED Agt, 2006

Note 38
Segment information

The Board of Directors (the 'Board’} have been identified as the Chief Operating Decision Maker {CODM). The Board regularly reviews
the performance reports and make decisions about allocation of resources.

An operating segment is a component of the company that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenue and incur
expenses, for which discrete financial information is available,

The main business of the Company is to provide micro finance in the rural areas to women organised as Joint Liability Groups (J1.Gs) and
to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME) sector,

The Board reviews key management information such as revenues, margins. performance and operating expenses for the Company as a
whole. Thus, the Board is of the opinion that the operations of the Company comprise of a single business segment,

The Company does not disclose separate segment information as the external reporting information provided in these financial statements
reflects infernal management information. Thus the results and the assets of the segment can be determined by reference to the Balance
Sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss for vear,

Information about major customers
The Company is not reliant on any one client or group of connected clents for generation of res

(=1h
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Note 39
Revenue from contract with customers

The Company presents revenues net of indirect taxes in its Statement of Profit and Loss,
Disaggregation of revenne from contracts with customers

In the following table, revenue from contracts with eustomers is disaggregated by major revenue streams and timing of revenue
recognition :

Major revenue streams For the Year ended 31  For the vear ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Interest incoine (On financial assets measured at amartised cost)
Interest income on portfolio loans 621.49 3,3i8.17
Interest on fixed deposits 134.80 199.79
Other interest 11.34 12.80
Total 767.63 3,530.76

Fees and commission income

Loan processing fees 13.83 132.86
Service charges 676.19 1,323.91
Total 690.02 1,456.77

Sale of services
Gain on leans securitised “
Excess interest spread on direct assignment -
Total - -

Total revenue from operations 1,457.65 4,987.53

As per Ind AS 115 - Revenue from contract with customery
Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point in time - -
Services transferred over time 696.02 1,436.77
690.02 1,456.77

As per Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments
Interest Income 767.63 3,530.76

FExcess interest spread on direct -
767.63 3.530.76
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Note 4¢
Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the vear attributable to equity holders of the Company by the

weighted average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

Diluted EPS amounts are caleulated by dividing the prefit attributable to equity holders of ihe Company by the weighted
average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would

be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

i. Profit attributable to equity holders of Company

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Profit atttibutable to equity holders of the Company:

Continuing operations

Profit attributable to equity helders of the Company for basic and diluted
earnings

H. Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(7,438.80)

(5,472.62)

(7,438.80)

(5,472.62)

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Issued ordinary shares at April 1 110.77 110.77
Effect of shares issued for cash 133.86 -
Weighted average number of shares at March 31 for basic and

diluted EPS 244.63 110.77

Basie and diluted earnings per share

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Basic earnings per share
Biluted earnings per share

(30.41)
(30.41)

(49.41)
(49.41)
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Note 41
Tax expense
{(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

For the Year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Current tax
Current period (a) - -
Changes in estimate related to prior years (b)

Deferred income tax liability / (asset), net
Origination and reversal of temporary differences - -
Reduction in tax rate
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses - -

Deferred tax expense (¢) - -
Tax expense for the year {a}+(b)+(c) - -

(b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

For the Year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Profit before tax (7,438.84) (5,472.62)
Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate (1,934.10) {1,422.89)

Tax effect of:
Tax effect on items on which no deferred tax was recognized 1,934.10 1,422.89
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Note 41 (continued)

(¢) Movement in deferred tax balances

31 March 2022

Net balance 01 Recogrised in profit Recognised Net Deferred tax  Deferred tax
April 2021 or foss in OCT asset liability
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment ¢.83 {1.59) - 2,42 242 -
Borrowings (10.11Y (7.6%) - (2.42) - (2.42)
Loansg 9.28 9.28 - - - -
Tax assets (Liabilities) - - - - 2.42 {2.42)
Set oft'tax
Net tax assets . - - - - 242 (2.42)
31 March 2021
Net balance 01 Recognised in profit Recognised Net Deferred tax ~ Deferred tax
April 2020 or loss in OCI asset liability
Deferred tax asset
Property, plant and equipment 27.41 26.58 - 0.83 0.83 “
Borrowings (22.63) (12.52) - (10.11) - (10.11)
Loans - (8.28) - 0.28 9.28 -
Other jtems (4.78) {4.78) - - - -
Tax assets (Liabilities) - 0.00 - (0.00} 10.11 (10.11)
Set off tax
Net tax assets - 0.00 - {0.00) 10.11 (16.11)

The company offsets tax assets and Habilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right o set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax anthority.

Significant management judgment is required in determining prevision for income tax, deferred income tax assets
deferred income tax assets. The recoverability of deferred income tax assets is based on estimates of taxable income

and the period over which deferred income tax assets will be recovered.

Tax losses & unabsorbed depreciation carried forward

31 March 2022 Expiry for 31 31 March 2021 | Expiry for 31 March
March 2022 2021
Business losses 14,009.15 Upto 31-03-2030 3,832.87 Upto 31-03-2029
Unabsorbed depreciation 525.59 No expiry 404.17 No expiry
14,534.74 4,237.04

Tax Credits earried forward

31 March 2022

Expiry for 31
Mareh 2022

3] March 2021

Expiry for 31 March
2021

MAT credit entitlement

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following items, becay

which the company can use the benefits therefrom:

Deductible temporary differences
MAT Credit entitlement
Tax losses & unabsorbed depreciation

Total

31 March 2022 31 March 2021
1,087.56 1,506.26
3,779.03 1,096.81
4,866.59 2,603.07

and liabilities and recoverability of
in which the relevant entity operates

Ise it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against
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Long term contract with foresecable lpsses

There are no long term contracts weluding derivative contracts for which there were any matenzl foreseeable Josses,
Credit default swaps

In accordance with Master Direction No, DNBR PI.007/03.10.119/2016-17 dated 01/09/2016 updated as on 22/02/2019 issued by Reserve Bank of India on Nen-Baoking Financiat Company
~ Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company {(Reserve Bank) Divections, 2016, ihe Company did not enter into any credit default swaps during the year ended 31 March 2022
(Previous Year: Rs. Nify

Gold loan jeweliery

In accordance with Master Direclion No. DNER.PD007H3.10.119/2016-17 dated 01/09/2016 updated as on 22/02/2019 issued by Reserve Bank of India on Nan-Banking Financial Company
—Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company (Reserve Bank) Dhirections, 2016, the Company has not lent against gold jewellery during the vear ended 31 March 2072 {Previous
Year: Rs. Nil)

Terms and conditions of privately placed redecmabie non-comvertible dehentures

. No of As at As at
Name Lss ate  Maturity Dy Rat Repay! t
s ssue Date . Maturity Dute NCIPs e cpaymen 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Petterlaar Effectenbewaarbedriif N.v.DR. 26-Aug-16 26-Sep-22 2,986 14.30% Buliet - 2,986.00
- 2.986.00
Less : Current maturities of non-convertible debentures - -
Long term. portion of privately placed redesmable non-convertible debenture - 2,986.00
Terms and conditions of sub erdinated debt
Name Issue Date  Matarity Date No Rate Repavment As at As at

31 Marck 2022 31 March 2021

Bullet principat
Karvy Capital limited 31-Mar-16 30-Sep-21 25,000,000 16.10% payiment; Tnterest - 2,500.00
serviced quarterly

Bullet principal
TGFC First Bank Limiled NA 1-Cct-25 NA 14.50% ayment; Interest 2,000.00 2.000.00
D

L serviced monthfy
|

lovestments

The Company has not made any investments as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2023, hence the disclosure pertaining to vahie of investments and movement of provision held towards
depreciation on investments is not applicable.

Derivatives

The company has not entered inte any derivative transaction during the current and previous year. The company has no unhedged foreim currency exposure as oo 31 March 2027 {31 March
2021 : Nil).

Details of Finaacial Assets seld to securftisation/reconstruction company for Asset reconstruction

The company has not sold financial assets to securitisationreconsiruction companies for asset reconstruction in the current and previous year.

Details of Assignment Transactions

The Company has sold some loans (measured at amortised cost) by way of direct bilateral assignment, as a source of finance

As per the terms of these deals, since substansial risk and rewards related to these assets were fransferred o the buyer, the assets have been de-recognised from the Company’s balance sheet
The table below summarises the carrying amount of the derecognised financial assets measured at amortised cost and fhe gam/(loss) en derccognition, per type of asset,

Particulars 31 Marels 2022 31 March 2021

Carying amount of de-recognised financial asset -
Carrying amount of retained assets at amortised cost* - -
Gain on sale of the de-recognised financial asset - -
*excludes Excess Interest Spread (EIS) on de-recognised Hnancial assets of 121,18 takhs {previous vear ; Nil}

Particalars 3F Muarch 2022 3] March 2021
1) Number of Accounts .
i) Aggregate value (net of provisions) of account sold

ilf) Aggrepate consideration

] Additional consideration realised in respect of aceounts transferred in earljer yeus

v) Apgregate gainf{loss} over net book valye
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Eino Finance Private Limited

(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements {coatinued)

For the year ended 31 March 2032

(Curreney: Indian Rupees in takls)

33 Capital adequacy ratio

Particular 2022
CRARY: 33.68%
CRAR - Tier I Capital % 21.62%
CRAR - Tier I Capital % 12.06%
Amount of Suberdinated Debt raised as Tier-1I capital B

Amoun: Raised by the issue of Perpetual Debt Instruinents NaA

56 Real estate exposure

The company had no exposure to rea! estate sector during the current and previous year.
37 Exposure to capital markets

The company had no exposure to capital markel during the current and previous vear,

58 Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators
The company is engaged in: business of Non-banking financial institution and it has obtained certiicate ol registration no. B-13 01609 from Reserve Bank of India.

39 Details of single borrower limit (SGL) / group horrower limit (GBL) exceeded by the NBFC

The company has not exceeded the prudential exposure Limit for any single/group borrower during the current and Previous year,

60 Ratings assigned by credit rating agencics and migration of ratings during the year

The company has received rating on 28" June, 2021 from Acuite as follows

Particulars Current Previous
Rating Rating

Long Term BB+(Stzble) BEE-(Stable}

Short Term _ i

61 Overseas assets
The company does not have any overseas assets during the current and previous year,
62 OFf balance SPVs
The company has not subscribed (o any off balance SPVs during the current and previous year,
63 Draw down from reserves
There has been no draw down from reserves during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021 : Nil).

64 Concentration of advances, cexposures and NPAs

Particalar 2022 2021
Concentration of Advarnces
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers 12721 14029
Percentage of Advances to twenty targest borrowers to Total Advances 3.77% 1.03%
Concentration of Expesures
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers 127.21 140,29
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers / customers to Total

X Bosu Y 377% 103%
Exposure
Cencentration of NPAs

Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts 30.07 256
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Sector-wise NPAs

Percentage of
NPAs to Total

Percentage of]
NPAs to Total

Sector Advances in that|  Advances in that

sector (2022} sector (2021)
Agriculture & allied activities 88.47% 3311%
MSME 1.13% 12.08%
Corporate borrowers - -
Services 90.90% 27.12%

Unsecured personal loans - R
Auto loans R .

Other personal loans . .

Accounting for excess interest spread (ELS)

The company recognises EIS on securitisation iransaction in line with RBI circular “Revisions to the guidelines on securitisation transactions” issued on 21 August
2012 which requires recognition of EIS only when redeemed in cash.

Penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators

RBI and other regulators have not imposed any penalties on the company during current and previous year,
Financing of parent company product

The company has nof financed any parent company product during current and previous year.

Details of Fraud

During the year, the company has reported frauds of Rs. 14.05 Lakhs {Previous year Rs. 9.06 Lakh) based on management reperting to risk committes and to the RBI
through prescribed returns.

Disclosure under clause 28 of the Listing Agreement for Debt Securities

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries - -
) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to associates - -
¢) Loans and advances in the nature of loans where there is - - -

(i) no repayment schedule or repayment beyond seven years - -

{ii} no interest or interest below section 186 of Companies Act, 2013 - -

d) Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in which direciors are interested - -

Disclosure under clause 16 of the Listing Agreement for Debt Securities

Nen convertible debentures are issued at an interest rate of 13.50% pa. to 16.10% pa and are repayable in bullet payment ranging from 66 to 72 months tenure from
the deemed date of allotment. Non copvertible debentures are secured through hypothecation of the specific pool of loans with a security cover of 1 times of the
outstanding debentures. The same has been repaid fully during the vear,

A. Corporate social responsibility (CSR)

The company does not meet the criteria specified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, CSR is not applicabie to the COmpany.

B. Secial Security Code, 2020

The Code on Social Security 2020 (*the Code’) relating to employes benefits, during the employment and post-employment, has received Presidential assent on
Seplember 28, 2020. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India Further, the Ministry of Labour and Emplovment has released draft rules for the Code on
November 13, 2020. However, the effective date from which the changes are applicable 1s vet to be notified and rules for guantifving the financial impact are also not
vel 1ssued.

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropuate impact in the financial statements in the peried in which, the Code becomes effective and the
related rules to determine the tinancial impact are published.
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Additional regulatery information
Details of benami property held

The Company do not have any Beaami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any
Benami property.

Defails of Loans and advances
Loans and advances granted to promoters, directors, key managerial persornel {KMPs) and

Amountof loanor | Percentage to the total

Type of borrower advance in the nature | loans and advances in

of loan outstanding the nature of loans

Promoters N R
Directors - -
KMPs - -

Witful defaulter

The Company has not been declared as a wilfui Defaulter by any Financial Institution or bank as at the date of Balance Sheet.
Relationship with struck off Companies

The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies (ROC)

The Company has nc pending charges or satisfaction which are vet o be registered with the ROC beyond the Statutory period.

Compliance with number of layers of companies

The Company has complied with the provision of the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the
Companies (Restriction or number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

Compliance with approved scheme(s) of arrangements

There are no Schemes of Arrangements has been approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act,
2013,

biscrepaney in ufilization of borrowings
The Company has used the borrowings fromt banks and financial institutions for the specific purpose for which it was taken at the balance
sheet date, There are ne discrepancy in utilisation of borrowings.

Utilisation of borrowed funds and share premium:

{A) The Company has not advanced or loaned o invested funds (sither borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) to any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities {Intermediaries).
(B} the Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party).

The Cormpany has not advanced or foaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {intermediaries)
with the understanding that the intermediary shall;

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any mapner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
(Ultimate Beneficiaries); or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall;

&} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsogver by or on behalf of the Funding Party
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or; :

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.
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Fino Finance Private Limited

{Formerly known as Intrepid Finance And Leasing Private Limited)
Notes to the financial statements (continued)
as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in lakhs)

Additional Information
Undisclosed income

‘The Company has no transaction that is not recorded in the books of accounts that Lias been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in
the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961),

Details of Crypto Curvency or Virtual Currency

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency,

Subsequent events

There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

Prior year comparatives

Previous vear figures have been regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current vear’s presentation.

As per our report of even date attached.

For Tibrewal Chand & Co
Chartered Accountanis
Firm's Registration Number: 311047E

Vishal Rathi
Partner
Membership No : 126244

Mumbai
28 May 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fino Finance Private Limited

(Formerly known as Intrepid Finance and Leasing
Private Limited)

Y

Ashok Kini Sudeep Gupta
Independent Director Whole-time Director
DIN 00812946 DIN 07899859



RBI Disclosure

: 1

Performing Assets

Standard Stage 1 493,50 18.48 475.02 150,01 {131.52)
Stage 2 220.17 86.15 134.01 0.66 §5.50

Subtotal 713.67 104.64 609,03 150.66 (46.02)

Non-Performing Assets (NPA)

Substandard Stage 3 441,98 441.98 - 147.37 264,61

Doubtful - up to I year Stage 3 .

1 to 3 years Stage 3 -

Meore thac 3 years Stage 3 -

Subtotal for doubtful - - -

Loss Stage 3 2.344.12 2.344.12 - 2,069.51 274.61

Subtotal for NPA 2,786.10 2,786.10 - 2,216.89 569.21

Other items such as guarantees, loan  |Stage |

commitments, etc. which are in the

scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered  |Stage 2 - -

under current Income Recognition,

Asset Classitication and Provisioning [Siage 3 - -

(IRACP) norms

Subtotal

Total Stage 1 493.50 18.48 475.02 150.01 (131,52}
Stage 2 220.17 86.15 134.01 0.66 85.50
Stage 3 2,786.10 2,786.18 (0.08) 2,216.89 569.29
Total 3,499.77 2,890.82 608.95 2,367.55 523.27
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as at 31 March 2022

(Currency: Indian Rupees in Lakhs)

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2022

T\JO": As at 31 March 2022 As at 31 March 2021
0.
1, ASSETS Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months After 12 months Total
() Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2 2,770.29 - 2,770,29 542,90 B 542.90
{b) Bank balances other than (a) above 3 1,360,14 42.78 1,402,592 2509 97 69.07 2.979.04
{c) Receivables - B
(i) Trade receivables 4 169.94 - 169.94 398.74 - 398.74
(i1} Other receivables - - - - - -
(d) Loans 5 608.09 0.86 608.95 9,084 07 1.361.76 10,455.83
{e) Other financial assets 6 .39 11.32 13.71 42,92 3.08 46,00
Total financial assets 4,910.85 54,96 4,965.81 12,988.60 143391 14.422.51
(2) Nen-financial assets
(a) Current tax assets (Net) - 226.77 226.77 - 463.75 463.73
{h) Deferred tax assets (Net} - {0.00) (0.00) * - -
{c} Property, plant and equipment 7 - 51.48 5148 - 112.7% 112,79
{d} Right-of-use asset 29 - 1.39 1.59 - 43.63 43.63
{e) Other Intangible assels 8 - 0.04 0.04 - 14.46 14.46
(f) Other non-financial assets 9 269.08 1.09 27017 332,69 1.13 333.82
Total non-financial assets 269.08 280,97 550.03 332.69 635.76 96845
TOTAL ASSETS 5,179.93 335.93 5,515,586 13,321.29 2,069.67 15,390.96
Within 12 months After 12 months Total Within 12 months After 12 months Total
L LIABILITIES
(1) Financial liabilities
(a) Payables
{i) Trade payables 10
- total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - h " T - -
small enterprises
- total outstanding dues of creditors other than 79.56 - 70.56 191.56 - 191.56
migro enterprises and siall enterprises
() Debt Securities 1 - - - 19.89 2,982.20 3.002.09
(¢} Borrowings (other than debt securities) 12 2,039.39 0.0¢ 2,039.39 3,964.00 848.62 4.812.62
(d} Subordinated liabilities 13 - 1,991.03 1,991.03 2,517.33 1,989.26 4.306.59
(&) Other financial liabilities 14 0.13 - 1,13 038 - 0.38
(f} L.eass liabilities 15 2.3s8 - 235 - 34,93 54.93
Total financial liabilities 2,121.43 1.991.03 4,112.46 6,693.16 3.875.01 12,568 17
{2) Non-financial liabilities
{a) Current Tax Liabilities 81,92 - 81.92 81.92 - 8192
(b} Provisions 16 F40.52 59.17 199.69 £20.96 t01.34 222.50
(¢) Other non-financial liabikities 17 66.55 0.00 66,55 105,54 {0.00) 105.51
Tatal non-financial lisbilities 188.99 39,17 348.16 308.39 i01.54 409,93
-Total liabilities 2,410.42 2,050.24 § 4,460.62 7.001.55 5,976.55 12,978.10
Net 2,769.51 {1,714.27) 1,055,294 6,319.74 {3,506.88) 241286







